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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Mastermyne Group Limited ('the Company') and of the Group, being
the Company and its subsidiaries, for the financial year ended 30 June 2016 and the auditor's report thereon.

Directorc
Ïhe directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are

Mr C Bloomfield (appointed 6 March 2014, appointed Chairman 26 February 2015) - Bachelor of Engineering (Mining), Graduate
Ce rtif i cate of M anage me nt
lndependent Chairman

Experie nce and other directorships
Colin brings to the Company ovel 27 years of mining experience in technical, operations, management and corporate roles. Until
recently Mr. Bloomfield led BHP Billiton's lllawarra Coal Group as President lllawarra Coal, a role he was appointed to in 2004.
During his time as President lllawarra Coal, Mr Bloomfield oversaw a marked improvement in safety performance, steered lllawarra
Coal towards growth and secured, with his team, a number of critically important approvals. He holds a First Class Certificate of
Competency in Mine Management and has managed underground coal mines in Australia.

Colin's former roles include Vice President Health, Safety and Environment for BHP Billiton where he had global responsibility for
the function. Previously he was Project Director for the BHP Billiton merger integration and a member of the BHP deal team for
that transaction. ln total he spent over five years working in various roles in BHP Billiton's corporate office.

Colin has previous experience as a Director at the NSW Minerals Council for almost nine years including three as Chairman. He was
also Chairman of Port Kembla Coal Terminal for over eight years.

Sp ecial Respo n si b i I iti es
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Mr A. Watts (appointed 10 March 2010)
Non - executive Director
Experience and other directorships
Andrew has been involved in contracting within the mining industry since 1994 and cqfounded Mastermyne in 1996.
Andrew was responsible for all aspects of Mastermyne's operations until the appointment of Tony Caruso as CEO in 2005. Andrew
relocated to Sydney in early 2010 to focus on the New South Wales market.

Special Responsibilities
Member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
Member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Mr G. Meena (appointed 15 September 2015) - Bachelor of Engineering (Mechaniæl)
Non - executive Director

Experience and other directorships
Gabe is an execut¡ve with over 30 years experience in the steel, mining and stevedoring ¡ndustry covering operations, maintenance
and engineering. Gabe has held senior operational and management roles with Bluescope Steel as General Manager Mills and
Coating, Bluescope Steel China as President China Coated and BHP Collieries as General Manager of a number of coal mines.
Gabe's most recent role was General Manager Operations with Patrick Terminals. Gabe has a Bachelor in Mechanical Engineering
and is graduate of the Australian lnst¡tute of Company Directors.

Sp ecial Re spo n s i b i I i ti es
Member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
Member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

I D¡r€ctors (continuedl
Mr A. Caruso (appointed 10 March 2010) - Post Graduate Degree in Business Management
Managing Director

Experience and other directorships
Tony was appointed CEO of Mastermyne in 2005 and Managing Director in 2008 and has overall corporate responsibility for
Mastermyne.
Tony has over 20 years experience in underground mine contracting services. Prior to joining Mastermyne, Tony was the General
Manager of Allied Mining in Oueensland and a consultant to the underground mining sector. He has a trade background plus a post
graduate degree in Business Management and is a Fellow of the Australian lnst¡lute of Management.

Mr D. Hamblin (appointed 10 March 2010, resigned 20 April 2016) - Bachelor of Engineering (Mechanical)

Non - executive Director

Experience and other directorships
Darren has been involved in the mining industry since graduating as a mechanical engineer in 1991 . He has worked directly for
mine owners as well as contractors in operations, planning and maintenance roles. Darren co-founded Mastermyne in 1996.
Following the appo¡ntment of Tony Caruso as CEO in 2005, Darren focused on developing Mastermyne's longer term business
strategies and systems. Danen became a non-executive Director in 2008.

S pecial R e spo n s i b i I iti es

Member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
Chair of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Mr J. Wentworth (appointed 30 March 201 1, resigned 15 April 20161- Bachelor of Laws (Hons), Bachelor of Commerce
Non - executive Director (independent)

Experie nce and other directo rships
James has been CFO of ASX listed Finders Resources Ltd since 2010. ln that role he has managed the financing of the company's
Wetar Copper Project. Prior to that, James had over 15 years experience in financial services, including private equity transactions.
acquisitions and integration, management and exit of investments, strategy development, structuring and finance. He has previously
worked at Champ Ventures, Goldman Sachs and Macquarie Bank. He has international experience and a background in the legal
profession.

Sp ecial B e spo n sibi I iti es

Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
Member of the Remuneration and Nomination Commiltee

Company sscretary
Mr C Kneipp was appointed Joint Company Secretary of the Company on 24 August 2O11 and appointed Sole Company Secretary
on 26 Feb,ruary 201 5. Chris has a Bachelor in Commerce, is a Certified Practicing Accountant and is a graduate of the Australian
lnstitute of Company Directors. Chris has been with the Group since March 2006 and has over 12 years experience in the mining
industry.

Directorc' meetings
The number of directors' meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and number of meetings attended by each of
the directors of the Company during the financial year are:

Direc{or Remuneration & Nomination
Gommittee Meetings

2

3

Board Meetings Audit and Risk Management
Gommittee Meetings

Mr C. Bloomfield
MrA. Watts
Mr G. Meena
Mr D. Hamblin
Mr J. Wentworth
Mr A. Caruso

A - Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year
B - Number of meetings attended

B

I
8
7

7

5

I

A
I
I
7

7

6
I

A
2

1

3
3
3

B

2

1

3

3
3

B

2

2

2

A
2

2

2
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

4 Openting and financial review
Financial Overview

Profit for the year
Mastermyne Group Limited and its controlled subsidiaries recorded a loss after tax of $13.186 million for the year ended 30 June
2016, down on the prev¡ous corresponding period (net loss after tax for the year ended 30 June 201 5 of $4.354 million). The result
included a non-cash goodwill impairment of $7.999 million (201 5: $4.538 million), and a loss on sale of assets of $2.003 million
(201 5: $0.006 million) as a result of the Group selling its Mackay workshop and closing it's Rockahampton workshop during the
period. The impact of these items increased the loss after tax by $9.401 million.

The Group's revenues were lower than the previous corresponding period by 3.37o. down to $168.434 million (2015: $1 74.195
million) as a result of continued slower economic conditions in the Coal sector and the continued focus on costs by the Group's
clients. The remainder of the Group's revenue decreased on the previous corresponding period as a result of lower contracting
activity. Profit margins have also decreased result¡ng from the lower contracting activity, lower equipment utilisation and contraction
in margins due to the current market climate.

Balance Sheet and Gash Florrs
The overall cash position reduced at year ending 30 June 2016 with a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $6.887 million
(201 5: net decrease of $0.087 million). The reduction was a result of some of the Group's ma¡or clients delaying payments due at
30 June 2016 until July, with $4.2 million overdue paid in the first week of July. Total cash flow movements were as follows:

¡ net cash inflows from operating activities for the year were $0.381 million (2015: net cash inflows of $7.135 million), the reduction
on last year is largely driven by delayed paymenls from clients as detailed above;

o net cash outflows from investing activities for the year of $1 .994 million (2015: net cash outflows of $1 1.293 millionl, down as a
result of the acquisition of subsidiary that occurred in the prior year which utilised $10.581 million in cash;
¡ net cash outflows from financing activities for the year of $5.274 million (201 5: net cash inflows of $4.071 million), resulting from
repaymentof borrowingsof $4.363million(201 5: $5.461 million),payingdividendsof $0.91 l million(2015: $1 .968million) andnil
proceeds from borrowings (2015: $1 1.500 million).

The balance sheet remains healthy despite net debt increasing by $2.682 million to $1 1 .115 million (201 5: $8.433 million), largely as
a result of reduct¡on in cash to $1 .836 million (201 5: $1 1 .043 million). The reduction in cash is a result of the delayed client
payments as detailed above. The Group still maintains headroom in ¡ts current bank facilities with working capital facilities totalling
$6 million, of which $0.321 million is drawn in bank guarantees.
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

4 Operating and financial review (continuedl
Operational Overview
Mastermyne Group's second half result has been dominated by the restructuring which took place over March and April this year.
The restructuring was a result of the decision to exit workshops in Mackay and Rockhampton and rightsize the overheads across
the group. The second half results were also impacted by a slowdown in the Mining division which is the effect of continued cost
management by our malor clients. The Mastertec Division has converted several small projects late in the financial year and
pleasingly this division has seen strong growth in the tender pipeline. Despite the second half result the Company has positioned its
operations to generate strong cash returns throughout the upcoming year.

The significant operational highlights for the financial year include:
o Group revenue $168.434 million (201 5: $1 74.'195 million)
¡ Net loss after tax of $1 3.186 million (201 5:net loss after tax of $4.354 million).
. Net debt at 30 June 2016 of $1 I .1 1 5 million
o GrouÞ Order Book at f¡nancial year end $123.330 million with S64.200 million to be delivered in the FY201 7 {excludes recurring
and purchase order work)

¡ Tendering Pipeline at $970.842 million.

Safe and reliable operations continues to be the priority and this year has seen significant progress made to reduce employee iniury
rates across all divisions in the business. Pleasingly FY2016 saw the Company achieve its lowest injury frequency rate in the
Companies history. The relentless focus on safety leadership and simplification of safety processes has underpinned this strong
result. ln parallel to the approach to behavioural safety leadership the Company has maintained a strong focus on safety compliance
evidenced through the maintaining of the triple accreditation across the Group.

The Mastermyne Mining business has continued to maintain a strong share of the underground contract¡ng market and continues to
grow its presence in the NSW markets. There has been a continued focus by the major mining houses on cost management which
has resulted in a decrease in long term projects and the tender pipeline has contracted accordingly in the underground area. Despite
this the Company has continued to expand its service offering through the chemical injection area and short term project delivery in
areas of ventilation services and longwall relocations. The equipment fleet remains mostly off hire resulting in no material change to
utilisation rates on equipment.

The Mastertec Division has continued to operate at similar levels of activity. Maintenance and Engineering work in the traditional
mining areas continues to be subdued and highly competitive. The Mastertec Division has made good progress in diversifying into
adiacent markets and now has a range of new project opportunities coming through a wide cross section of customers and sectors.
As part of the restructure the Company took the decision to exit the workshops in Rockhampton and Mackay with the
Rockhampton operation merged with the Gladstone workshop. Gladstone remains a strategic base for the business and provides a
platform to access the heavy industrial sector in the region. As a result of the continued weakness accross the sector and the
decision to to ex¡t the workshops, the carrying amount of the Mastertec CGU was assessed to be higher than its recoverable
amount, and the recognised value of goodwill associated with the Mastertec CGU of $7,999 thousand was fully impaired (2015:

$4,538 thousand).

5



4

Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

5
5.1

Operating and financial review lcontinuedl
Outlook
The prudent steps the Company has taken will ensure that it will generate strong cash in the com¡ng year. The outlook moving into
FY2O17 sees current underground operations remaining subdued with an ongoing focus on costs by the Group's clients.There is
cunently a number of Tier 1 mine owners divesting assets which is likely to create opportunities with new owners around contract
mining services. The strategy of diviersifying through Mastertec has lead to an increase in the current pipeline of tendered
opportunities which supports the expected growth for the division in FY2O17. Whilst the Company ¡s not expecting much change to
the current pricing environment it is confident that the strategies implemented in the last financial year will deliver stronger returns
for the business.

Remuneration report
Principles of remuneration - audited
Key management personnel have authority and responsibility for planning, directíng and controlling the activities of the Company
and the Group, including directors of the Company and other executives. Key management personnel comprise the directors of the
Company and executives l¡sted below.

¡ Mr C. Kneipp, Chief Financial Officer (appointed 20 March 2006)
¡ Ms V. Gayton, Executive General Manager Human Resources (appointed 11 August 2010)
. Ms B. Jooste, Executive General Manager HSEO (appointed 14 June 201 1 , resigned 25 September 201 S)
. Mr D. Sykes, Executive General Manager Mastermyne (appointed 24 April2}l2l
r Mr P. Mills, Executive General Manager Mastertec (appointed 29 September 2014)

Compensation levels for Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Group are competitively set to attract, retain and motivate
appropriately qualified and experienced directors and executives. The remuneration committee obtains independent data on the
appropriateness of remuneration packages of the Group given trends in comparative companies and sectors both locally and
nationally and the objectives of the Company's compensation strategy.

The remuneration structures of the group are designed to attract and reward suitably qualified candidates, reward the achievement
of strategic object¡ves, and achieve the broader outcome of creation of value for shareholders. The remuneration structures consist
of both a fixed and variable component, designed around KPI's aligned with the short and long term strategic ob,jectives of the
group. Remuneration structures reflect:

. the capability and experience of the key management personnel;

. the key management personnel's ability to control the relevant segmenVs' performance; and
¡ the recognition of the key management personnel's contribution to the Group's performance.

ln addition to their salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to its KMP, and contributes to a post-employment defined
contribution superannuation plan on their behalf. The reviews are conducted under the terms of reference set down for the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee (RNC).
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

5.1 Principles of remuneration - audited (continuedl

Fixed remuneration
Fixed remuneration cons¡sts of base compensation (which is calculated on a total cost basis and includes any FBT charges related to
employee benefits including motor vehicles), as well as employer contributions to superannuation funds.

Remuneration levels of the CEo/Managing Director are reviewed annually by the RNc through a process that considers individual,
segment and overall performance of the Group. ln addition, external data is provided for analysis of KMP's remuneration to ensure ¡t
remains competitive by benchmarking against the market place. The chairman of the RNC sources data independently of
management from appropriate independent advisors. For other key executive management, the CEO/Managing Director will submit
recommendations to the RNC along with relevant supporting data and e)Cernally independent comparative information. A senior
executive's compensation may also be reviewed upon promotion or in line with movements in the market place during the period.

Perlormance linked remuneration
Non-executive Directors are not eligible to participate in performance linked remuneration of either a short or long term nature.

Performance linked remunerat¡on includes both short-term and long-term incentives and is designed to reward KMP for meeting or
exceeding their financial and personal objectives. The short-term incentive (STl) is an 'at risk' bonus provided in the form of cash.

Short-term incentive bonus
The Mastermyne short term incentive plan was introduced as a structured incentive to reward Key Management Personnel's (KMP)
performance against predetermined KPls. The KPls include measures aligned with the strategic objectives of the Group, with
specific measures (normally 5 or 6) for individual performance, group performance and underlying performance of the relevant
segment. The measures are chosen to align the individual's reward to the strategic goals of the Group.

The financial performance objectives may vary by individual and are broadly based on profitability compared to budgeted amounts
approved by the board each year. The non-financial objectives vary dependent upon position and responsibility and are aligned with
the measures and targets set to achieve the strateg¡c objectives of the group on an annual basis. STI payments must be self
funding.

At the end of the financial year the RNC assess the actual performance of the Group, the relevant segment and individual against
the KPI's set at the beginning of the f¡nanc¡al year. Payment of individual bonuses is based on the assessment of the RNC with
recommendations from the Managing Director (for employees other than the Managing Director) lak¡ng into consideration the
overall performance of the individual for the period. The Managing Director's STI bonus is set by the Board based on assessment of
his/her performance against agreed KPls as assessed by the RNC and recommended to the Board. ln all cases, the Board retains
the discretion not to pay any STI; the Board also has the discretion to modify (down or up) payments based on recommendations
from the RNC.
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

5.1 Principles of remuneration - audited lcontinuedl
Long-term incentive
An employee performance rights plan was adopted by the board on 15 September 20'15 and the plan was activated by resolution of
the Board as of 16 November 201 5. The purpose of the employee performance rights plan is to attract, motivate and retain
executives, encouraging individuals to participate in the company through ownership of shares. The objective is to improve
Mastermyne's performance by aligning the ¡nterests to those of the shareholders and the Group.

The KMP including the Managing Director was issued 795,898 (Managing Director 347.436) performance rights during the financial
period ending 30 June 2016, which vest in two tranches at 1 October 2018. The grant of these rights was made in accordance with
the Company's Employee Rights Plan voted upon by shareholders at the 201 5 AGM, with specific details to the issue of these
rights voted upon by shareholders at the 201 5 AGM. The ability to exercise the rights is conditional on the Group meeting its
performance hurdles.

Vesting of the rights will be subject to achievement of the vest¡ng conditions setout below and the eligible participant be¡ng
employed at the vesting date:

¡ Vesting Condition 1: The main Vesting Condition is that the eligible participant must be employed within the Group on the Test
Date. lf employment is ceased with the Group prior to the Test Date. the performance rights will lapse unless the Board at its
absolute discretion determines otherwise.

¡ Vesting Condition 2: Vesting is also conditional on the continuation of good conduct and the execution of duties in the best
interests of Mastermyne. lf it is deemed the eligible participant has acted fraudulently or dishonestly, or is in breach of obligations to
Mastermyne, the Board at its discretion may determine that some or all of the performance rights will lapse.

¡ Vesting Condition 3: Ihere is an overriding Vesting Condition, requiring a minimum 87o total shareholder return (TSR) during the
TSR measurement period (i.e. from the Time of Grant to the Test Date).

. Vesting Condition 4: lf Vesting Condition 3 is achieved there are two further Vesting Conditions that will each be applied
independently to 507o of the performance rights. Both of these Vesting Conditions depend on Mastermyne's ISR percentile rank
during the TSR measurement period:

a. Tranche A: 509o of the performance rights will be conditional on the company's TSR rank relative to companies
in the ASX All Ordinaries Accumulation index;
b. Tranche B: 50% of performance rights will be conditional on the company's TSR rank relative to the ASX 200
Resources Accumulation index.

For each tranche, the percentage of performance rights which will vest will be as specified in the table below:

TSR Rank during TSR
measurement period

Percentage of Tranche A or
Tranche B performance rights

vesting
Below 50th percentile ol the
ASX Peer Group or the
Resources Peer Group

OVo

50th percentile to 75th
percentile of the ASX Peer

Group orthe Resources Peer
Group

507o plus 2c/o Íor each percentile
above 50th percentile

Above 75th percentile of the
ASX Peer Group or the
Resources Peer Group

100%
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

5.1 Principles of remuneration - audited (continuedl
Short-tsrm and long-term incentive structure
The RNC considers that the above performance-linked compensation structures will achieve the objectives of attracting, retaining
and motivating suitably experienced executives. ln the cunent year the financial linked targets representing a minimum of bgyo of
each KMP performance criteria were adversely affected by the slow down in the coal sector. resulting in no short term incentives
being approved bythe Board.

Gonsequences of perlormanoe on shareholders' wealth
ln considering the Group's performance and benefits for shareholders wealth, the RNC have regard to the following indices in
respect of the current financial year and the previous four financial years.

(Loss)/Prof it attributa ble to
owners of the Company
Dividends paid

Change in share price

Return on capital employed

2016

$ (13,156,000) $

s 91 1,000 $
-31Vo

-32.23Vo

2015

(4,376,000) $

1.968.121 $
€5%

ß.28Vo

2014

2,963,000

3,468,406
-35Yo

8.08%

2013

$ 11,514,000 S

$ 6,105,000 $
STVo

29.667o

2012

14,664,000

5,050,000
48Vo

45.6OVo

Profit is considered as one of the financial performance targets in setting the STI
calculated in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs).

Profit amounts tor 2012 to 2016 have been

The overall level of KMP compensation takes into account the performance of the Group over a number of years. Over the past
three years the Group's proifits have declined as a result of the softening coal industry resulting in a loss from ordinary activities
over the past two years. The declining revenues and profit coupled with the restructuring of the business during the period, has
resulted in a loss from ordinary activities after income tax ¡n the current year. As a result of the softening coal industry both KMp
and director remuneration has been reduced by 107o and 2OVo respectively during the period.

Other benefits
Key Management Personnel can receive additional benefits as non-cash benefits, as part of the terms and conditions of their
appointment. Noncash benefits typically include motor vehicle benefits, and the Group pays fringe benefits tax on these benefits

Executive Service Agreements
The RNC recommends Group remuneration policies for Key Management Personnel. The committee focuses mainly on the CEO's
remuneration but reviews agreements made with other KMP. ln recommending the CEO remuneration package, the RNC takes
advice from independent advisors in executive and non-executive remuneration as noted below.

The Group has entered into service agreements with each key management person that are capable of term¡nation on 3 months'
notice. The Group retains the right to terminate an agreement immediately by making payment egual to 3 months' pay in lieu of
notice. The CEo/Managing Director's contract has no fixed term and is capable of termination on 9 months' notice.

Key Management Personnel are also entitled to receive on termination of employment their statutory entitlements of accrued
annual leave, long service leave and sick leave, together with any superannuation benefits. Non-executive Directors are not eligible
for annual leave, long service leave nor sick leave although they may be granted leave of absence in specific circumstances.

9



Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

5.1 Principles of rsmuneration - audited (continuedl
Executive Service Agreements (continuedl
The service agreements outline the components of remuneration paid to the key management personnel but does not prescribe
how remuneration levels are modified year to year. Remuneration levels are reviewed each year by the RNC and take into
consideration any change in the scope of the role performed by the senior executive or with any changes made to the
remuneration policy during the period. Remuneration is benchmarked against the external market place with the ob,jective to
ensure senior executives are rewarded equitably by reference to their individual performance and the Group's overall performance.

Services from remuneration consultants

ln the current year the RNC relied upon data provided by McDonald & Company Australasia (McDonald) with some detailed analysis
of remuneration circumstances in Mastermyne. No specific recommendations were sought on director or KMP remuneration due to
the Board's view that market circumstances were too fluid to allow historical information to provide a useful guide to appropriate
remuneration levels.

During the year McDonald's was paid a total of $7,1b0.

Direetors'Fees
As with the Executives, remuneration of non-executive directors (NED) for is ususually reviewed based on comparative roles in the
market place, however this yera based on the continued softening in the coal sector current levels of remuneration were reduced by
20yo resulting in the fees stated as follows:

o Chairman of the Board and the Chair of another committee $74,774 per annum
o NED and Chair of a Committee $43,400 per annum
o NED with no chair responsibilities $41,965 per annum

ln future years the aggregate remuneration of non executive directors will be an amount determined by the shareholders from time
to time in the annual general meeting. The fees will be divided between directors in proportions agreed to from time to time by the
total Board-
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5.2

Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

D¡rrctors' üd cxccr¡t¡v. oñicGrs"rmunalttion - rud¡tad
Dets¡ls of the nature and amount of each major element of remuneration of each director of the company and other key management personnel of the consolidated
entity are:

Non -executive

Executive D¡recto6

Exed¡t¡ves

ilotcr ¡n rrlrt¡on to th! 2016 trblæ of dirrctors' and crrcut¡yr off¡ccr¡' Émunalrt¡on
. Mr G Meena was appointed Non-executive D¡rector on 1 5 September 201 5

'. Mrs B Jooste resigned as Executive General Manager HSEO on 25 September 201 5

. Mr J Wentworth res¡gned as Non-Executive D¡rector on 15 April 2016

. Mr D Hômbl¡n resigned as Non-Executive Director on 20 April2016

. No short term incentive bonuses were awared in the current financial year. The short term incentive bonus is for performancè dur¡ng the respective financial year.
The amount was f¡nally determ¡ned on 'l g July 2016 after performônce rev¡ews were completed and approved by the RNC.
o The fair value of the rights is calculated at the date of grant us¡ng a b¡nomial and Monte Carlo pric¡ng model and allocated to each reporting period evenly over the
per¡od lrom grant date to vest¡ng date. The value disclosed ¡s the portion of the fair value of the rights recognised in this reporting period.

20L6 Short Term

Post-

Employment
Share based

payments

AUD

Salary & Fees

STI cash

bonus
Non-

monetary lotal
Super-annuation

Benefits
Termination

Benef¡ts R¡ghts Total

Proport¡on of
remuneration
performance

relãted

Mr C Bloomfield
D Hamblin

A Watts
J Wentworth

82,038

39,62s
44,346
40,351

82,038

39,625

44,U6
40,351

7,793
3,764
4,2r3

43,389
rt8,559

r(),351

A Caruso

B Jooste

P M¡IIs

C Kneipp

D Sykes

2L8,222
300,16s

75,829
2!2,293

19,500

4,595

300,16s

80,424
2L2,293

20,477

27,248
4,032

20,153 r,972

2,05t
2,U7

260,250
330,260

u,456
234,4r8

0.

0.
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 20fG

5.2 Dirtctorl rnd axGcut¡va o¡tica]a'ltmun.rrtion - auditcd lcontinucdl

Non -execut¡ve dir€ctoñt

Executive Directo6

Executives

Notrs ¡n ltlction to thc 2015 tabl.s of dírlctors'rnd GrGGr¡tavG oif¡cars'ËmunlEt¡on
o Mr C Bloomfield was appointed Chairman on 26 February 2015
. Mr P Mills was appointed Execut¡ve General Manager Mastertec 29 September 2014
o Mr N O'Hare resigned as General Manager Engineering on 9 November 2014
. MrJ Sleeman resigned as General Manager Services on l7 October 2014

o No short term incent¡ve bonuses were awared in the 20'l 5 financial year. The short term incent¡ve bonus is for performance during the respect¡ve fin¿nc¡al year. The
amount was finally determined on 13 August 2015 after performônce reviews were completed and ôpproved by the RNC.

. The fair value of the rights ¡s calculated at the date of grant using a binomial and Monte Carlo pricing model and allocâted to each reporting period evenly over the
period from grant date to vestìng date. The value disclosed is the portion of the fair value of the r¡ghts recognised in this report¡ng period.

2015 Short Term

Post-

Employment

Term¡nat¡on

Benefits

fsl

Share- based
payments

Total

fsr

Proport¡on of
temunerat¡on
performance

related

1%lin AUD

Salary & Fees
(sr

STI cash

bonus
(sr

Non-
monetary
benef¡ts

Total

fsr

Super-annuat¡on
Eenefits

(sr
Rights

rsl

lvlr C Bloomfield
lvlr D Hamblin

N4r A Watts
Mr I Wentworth

59,924
50 875
44,555
54.250

59,924

50,875
44,555

54,250

5,693

4,833

4,233

65,617

55,708
48,788

54.250

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

Mr A Caruso 347,004 19,500 366,504 27.697 35,307 429,508 8.22%

Mr C Kne¡pp
Mr D Sykes

Mrs B Jooste

Mf P M¡IIs

Ms V Gayton

Mr N O'Hare

Mr J Sleeman

¿¿L,UO
304',837

!69,749
LLg,S97

168,286

92,877

65.7U

1.9,500

19,500

24L,340
304,837

t89,249
7L9,597

768,286
92,877

65,784

23,L96
30,067

18,501

LO,79L

t7,455
7,63r
7,235

8,032

20,769

264,536
334,904

207,750
130,388

186,141

108,540

93.788

U,IJIJYO

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.æ%
0.N%
0.00%

L57,732 28,801 35,307 1,979.918
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For thc ycar cndcd 30 June 2016

5.3 Analysis of bonuscs includcd ¡n rGmunarrt¡on - ¡uditcd
Detatls of the vesting profile of the short-term incentive cash bonuses awarded as remunerat¡on to each director of the Group and other key management
personnel are detailed below.

lncludcd in % ycatcd in ycar % lorfcitcd in
rcmuncration g yrrr (Bl

n¡
D¡rectors
Mr A. Caruso - 0.0% 100.0Yo

Execut¡ves

Mr C Kne¡pp - 0.090 100.07o

Mr D Sykes - 0.07o 100.09o

Mr P M¡lls - 0.0% 100.070

Ms V Gayton - 0.0% 100.0Yo

(A) Amounts included ¡n remuneration for the financial year represent the amount that vested ¡n the financial year based on achievement of personal goals and
satisfaction of specified performance cr¡teria. No amounts vest in future f¡nancial years in respect of the bonus schemes for the 2Ol 6 f¡nancial year.

(B) The amounts forfeited are due to the performance or service criteria not being met in relation to the current financial year.

Equity lnstrumcnÈ - ruditGd
All rights refer to r¡ghts to acquire one ordinary share of Mastermyne Group L¡m¡ted for no cons¡derat¡on which upon exercise are exchangeable on a one for
one basis.

5.4.1 Rights ovcr cqu¡ty ¡nst?umrnts gnntcd rs comp.nsrtion - ¡uditcd

5.r

Numbcr of rights Grant d¡tc Fair valuc pcr
grantcd during r¡ght rt grrnt

2016 d¡tc (Sl

0.1 1 16

0.1116

0.1116

0.1116

0.1 1 16

0.1 140

0.1 140

0.1 140

0.1 140

0.1 140

Expiry datc ñlumbcr of rights
vcstcd during

2016

Excrcísê
pricc pcr
r¡gml$)

Execut¡ves

Mr A.Caruso 173,718 21ñ112016
Mr C. Kneipp 55,555 21þ1f2O16
Mr D Sykes 77,137 2110112016

Mr P Mills 53,419 21þ1nO16
Ms V Gayton 38,120 21ß112016
Mr A.Caruso 173,718 21n1n}16
Mr C. Kneipp 55,556 21n1n016
Mr D Sykes 77,137 21þ1nO16
Mr P Mills 53,419 21n1nü6
Ms V Ga¡on 38,1 19 21ß1/2016

No rights have been granted s¡nce the end of the financ¡al year

1fiOno1B
1110no1a

1110no1a

1fiOr2018

1fiOno1B
1110t201a

11101201a

1nono18
1^OnOlA
1nono18

5.4.2

5.¡r.3

llodification of trms of cqu¡ty-scttbd sharG bascd paymcnts t¡¡nsactions - ¡uditcd
No terms of equity-settled share-based payment transactions (including rights granted as compensat¡on to a key management person) have been altered or
modif¡ed by the issuing entity during the reporting per¡od or the prior period.

Excrcisc of rights gËntGd a¡ oomprnsrtion - ¡udit¡d
During the reporting period no shares were issued on the exercise of rights prev¡ously granted as compensation
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For thc ycar cndcd 30 June 20fG

5.4.4 Analysis of rights oycr cquity ¡nsùumGnts grrntcd as compcns¡t¡on - audit¡d
Details of vest¡ng prof¡les of the r¡ghts granted as remunerat¡on to each key management person of lhe Group are detailed below.

E¡ccr¡tivcs
Mr A.Caruso

Mr A.Caruso

Mr A.Caruso

Mr A.Caruso

Mr A.Caruso

Mr A.Caruso

Mr A.Caruso

Mr C. Kneipp

Mr D Sykes

Mr P Mills

Ms V Gayton

Mr A.Caruso

Mr C. Kneipp

Mr D Sykes

Mr P Mills

Ms V Gayton

Execut¡ves

Mr A.Caruso

Mr C. Kneipp

Mr D Sykes
Mr P Mills
Ms V Gayton

26111nO12

2ü11nO12
2611112012

26t11t2012

26111nO12

26111nO12

21þ1nO16
21lO1nO16

21ß1nO16
21ß1n016
21filnO16
21lO1nO16

21lO1nO16

211O112016

21ß1nO16
21rc112016

Financi¡l
yaar ¡n

which grant
Ycsts
201 6

201 6

201 6

2016

201 6

2016

201 I
201 I
201 I
201A

201 I
2018

201 I
2018
201 I
201 I

R¡ghts Tnnchc

FY2O14 TSR

FY2O15 TSR

FY2O16 TSR

FY2O14 EPS

FY2O15 EPS

FY2O1 6 EPS

FYl6TRANCHE A

FYl6TRANCHE A
FYlGTRANCHE A
FYl6TRANCHE A
FYl6TRANCHE A
FY]6 TRANCHE B

FYl6 TRANCHE B

FYl6 TRANCHE B

FY16 TRANCHE B

FY16 TRANCHE B

Numbcr ol rights Grant datc 7o vcstcd in % fo¡Ícitcd
grantcd VGar in ycar

245,OOO

245,000

245,000

1 05.000

1 05,000

1 05,000

173,718

55,555

77,137

53,419

38,1 20

173,718

55,556

77,137

53,419

38,1 1 I

100%

1 007o

1 009o

1 007o

lOOlo

1 007o

0%

OVo

OTo

o%

OTo

OVo

o%

OYo

OTo

Olo

0To

0%

OVo

OVo

o%

OTo

OTo

o%

o%

OVo

0%

Olo

Qlo

o%

OVo

OVo

5.a.5 Analysis of movcm.nts in rights - auditcd

Gr¡ntcd in yc¡r $ Vtluc ol riglrts
lAl cxcrciscd in ycar

¡ (Bt

Lapscd in
Yc¡r
¡tc)

39,1 91

1 2,533

17,402

12,O51

8,600

(A) The value oT rights granted in the year is the fa¡r value of the rights calculated at grant date using the Monte Carlo pr¡cing
model. The total value of the options granted is included in the table above. This amount ¡s allocated to remuneration over the
vest¡ng period.

(Bl The value of options exercised during the year is calculated as the market price of shares of the Company as at close of trad¡ng
on the date the opt¡ons were exerc¡sed after deducting the price paid to exerc¡se the r¡ght.

(C) The value of the rights that lapsed during the year represents the benefit forgone and is calculated at the date the right lapsed
assum¡ng the performance criteria had been achieved.

The movement during the report¡ng period in the number of rights exchangeable for ordinary shares in Mastermyne Group Limited held d¡rectly. indirectly or
beneficially by each key management person, including their related part¡es, is as follows:

Rlghts in tastcrmync Group Llmltcd
Hcld at

I July 2015
GilTt.d as

compansfion
Ex.rcisad Forfoitcd or

L¡psrd
Dur¡ng thr

Ya¡r

H.ld !t
30 Jun.2016

V.st.d and
u.rdscrb¡c f

I JulV 2015

Lrprd or Vd¡t d.nd
Ercrcls¡d ararcbr¡b¡c
dur¡ngth. lt

V..r 30Jun.201G

D¡ractors

Mr A. Caruso
Ex.cutiYrs
Mr C. Kneipp

Ms V. Gayton
Mr D. Sykes
Mr P. Mills

347,436 1,050,000 347,436

111,111

76,239
154,274

1 06,838

111,111

76,239
154,274

106,838

1,0s0,000
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities
Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

5.5.1 lndividual directors and executives compensation disclosures - audited
Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the Group
since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving directors'
interests existing at year-end.

5.5.2 Loans to key management personnel - audited
No loans were made, guaranteed or secured by the Company to key management personnel for the year.

5.5.3 Key management personnel and director transactions - audited
A number of key management persons, or their related part¡es, hold positions in other entit¡es that result in
them having control or significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entities.

A number of these entities transacted with the Group or its subsidiaries in the reporting period. The terms
and conditions of the transactions with key management persons and their related part¡es were no more
favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar
transactions to non-key managements persons related entities on an arm's length basis.

The aggregate value of transactions and outstanding balances relating to key management personnel and
entities over which they have control or significant influence were as follows:

Transac,tion
Andrew Watts - Watty fty Ltd

Andrew Watts - Watty Pty Ltd

Andrew Watts - Watty Pty Ltd

Note
(¡)

(ii)

(iii)

Transastion value
year ended 30 June (in AUDI

2016 2015

255,536 255,536

276,096 276,096
56,727 93.600

Balance outstanding
as at 30 June lin AUDI

2016 2015

588.359 625.232

(i) The Group rents the premises at 45 River Street, Mackay which is owned by Andrew Watts through
his company Watty Pty Ltd. Amounts paid for rent are at arm's length and are due and payable under
normal payment terms.

(i¡) The Group is paying for leasehold improvements made by Watty Pty Ltd to the premises at 45 River
Street, Mackay which is owned by Non - executive Director, Andrew Watts through his company
Watty Pty Ltd.

(ii¡) The Group rents a duplex at 56 Grosvenor Drive, Moranbah which is owned by Non - executive
Director, Andrew Watts through his company Watty Pty Ltd. Amounts paid for rent are at arm's length
and are due and payable under normal payment terms. This rental agreement was ceased as at j2
March 2016.

From time to time key management personnel and directors of the Group, or their related entities, may
purchase goods or services from the Group. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as
those entered into by other Group employees or customers and are trivial or domestic in nature.
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

5.5.4 Movements in shares - audited
The movement during the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares in Mastermyne Group Limited held directly,
indirectly or beneficially by each key management person, including their related parties, is as follows:

Shares in Mastermvne Grouo Limited
Shares held at
30 June 2015 Purchases

Received on
exercise of

ofiions
Sales

Sharos held at
30 June 2016

Directors

Mr C. Bloomfield
Mr G. Meena
Mr A. Watts
Mr A. Caruso
Executives

Mr C. Kneipp
Ms V. Gavton

100,000 1,000,000
100,000

1,000,000

1,100,000
100,000

12,262,245
1.419,693

11,262,245
1,419,693

88,703 88,703
13.36613,366

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group during the course of the financial year were to provide contracting services to the
underground long wall mining operations and industrial products and services in the coalfields and supporting industries of
Oueensland and New South Wales.

Significant changes in the state of affairs
There have not been any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

Environmental regulation
The Group is subject to var¡ous environmental regulations under both Commonwealth and State legislation in relation to its
involvement in the operation of mines.

The Board believes that the Group has adequate systems in place for the management of its environmental requirements and
is not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to the Group.

DiYidends
Dividends paid or declared by the Company to members since the end of the previous financial year were:

6

7

I

Total
amount
s'000s

Franked/
unfranked

Declared and paid during the year 2016
2015 Ordinary - Ordinary Shares Final Dividend
Total amount

$ per share

0.010 91 1 Franked

911

Date of payment

1511012015

9

Franked dividends declared as paid during the year were franked at the rate of 30 per cent.

No dividend has been declared for the financial year ending 30 June 2016.

Events subsequent to repoÉing date
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transact¡on or
event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to affect significantly the
operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years.
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Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

10

11

Likely developments
The outlook moving into FY2017 sees current operations remaining subdued with an ongoing focus on costs by the Group's
clients. There is currently a number of the Tier 1 mine owners divesting assets which is likely to create opportunities for with
new owners around contract mining services. The strategy of diviersifying through Mastertec has led to an increase in the
current pipeline of tendered opportunities which supports the expected growth for the division in FY2017.

Further information about likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected results of those operations in
future financial years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the information would be likely to result ¡n

unreasonable prejudice to the Group.

Directors' interests
The relevant interest of each director in the shares, debentures, interests in registered schemes and rights or options over
such instruments issued by the companies within the Group, as notified by the directors to the Australian Securities Exchange
in accordance with S205G(1) of the Corporations Act 2001 , at the date of this report is as follows:

Mr C. Bloomfield
Mr G. Meena
MrA. Watts
Mr A. Caruso

Mastermyne Group Limited
Ordinary shares Options and Rights over

ordinary shares
't,100,000

100,000
12,262,245
1,419,693 347,436

12 Share options
Unissued shares under options
At the dati¡ of this report there were no unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option.

lndemnification and insurance of officers and auditors
lndemnification
The Company has agreed to indemnify the following current directors of the company Mr C Bloomfield, Mr A Caruso, Mr A
Watts and Mr G Meena for all liabilities to another person (other than the Company or a related body corporate) that may arise
from their position within the company and its controlled entities, except where liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of
good faith. The agreement stipulates that the Company will meet the full amount of any such liabilities including costs and
expenses.

The company has not made a relevant agreement, or indemnified against a liability, for any person who is or has been an
auditor of the company.

lnsurance premiums

During the financial year the entity has paid premiums on behalf of the Company in respect of directors' and officers' liability
and legal expenses insurance contracts for the year ended 30 June 2016 and, since the financial year, the entity has paid or
agreed to pay on behalf of the Company, premiums in respect of such insurance contracts for the year ending 30 June 2017.
Such insurance contracts insure against certain liab¡lity (subject to specific exclusions) persons who are or have been directors
or executive officers of the Company.

The directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premiums paid in respect of
the directors' and officers' liability and legal expenses insurance contracts, as such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of
the contracts.
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' report
For the year ended 30 June 2016

14 Non-audit services
During the year KPMG. the Company's auditor, has performed certain other services in addition to their statutory duties

The board has considered the non-aud¡t services provided during the year by the auditor and in accordance with written advice
provided by resolution of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, is satisfied that the provision of those non-audit services
during the year by the auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

¡ all non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Company and have been
reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Comm¡ttee to ensure they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the
auditor;

r and the non-audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in
APES 1 10 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, as they did not involve reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work,
acting in a management or decision making capac¡ty for the Company, acting as an advocate for the Company or jointly sharing
risks and rewards.

Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Company. KPMG, and its related practices for audit and non-audit services
provided during the year are set out below. ln addition, amounts paid to other auditors for the statutory audit have been
disclosed:

ln AUD
Audit services:
Auditors of the Company
Audit and review of financial reports (KPMG Australia)

Consolidated
2016 2015

120,000 180,000
120,000 180,000

Services other than statutory audit:
Taxation compliance services (KPMG Australia)
Data analytic services (KPMG Australia)

103,000 86,000

15 Proceedings on behalf of the Gompany
No person has applied for leave for Court to bring proceeding on behalf of the company or to intervene in any proceedings to
which the Group is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Group for all or any part of those
proceedings. The Group was not a part to any such proceedings during the year.

Lead auditor's independence declaration
The Lead auditor's independence declaration is set out on page 19 and forms part of the Directors' report for financial year
ended 30 June 2016.

1t Rounding off
The Company is of a kind referred to ¡n ASIC Corporatlons (Rounding in Financial / Directors' Reports) lnstrument 2016/1 91 and
in accordance w¡th that lnstrument, amounts in the financial report and directors' report have been rounded off to the nearest

dollars, unless otherwise stated.

accordaìce a resolution of the Directors:

91,000
12.000

75,000
1 1,000

16

ib made in

b,\-
Bloomfield

Chairman

Dated at Brisbane this 16th day of August 201 6
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Lead Audífor's fndependence Declaratíon under Section 307C of the Corporøtìons Aa 2001

To: the directors of Mastermyne Group Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and beliet in relation to the audit for the fin¿ncial
year ended 30 June 2016 there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(iÐ no contraventions ofany applicable code ofprofessional conduct inrelationtothe
audit.

KPMG

ML
Partner

Brisbane
16 August 2016

U\frq

KPMG, an Austral¡an partnership and a member
firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG lnternational Cooperative
f'KPMG lnternational"), a Swiss entity.

t9

Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislatìon.



Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2016

Gonsolidated
ln thousands of AUD Note 2016 2O1S

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
lnventories
Current tax assets
Total current assets
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets
Total non-curlent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Loans and borrowings
Employee benefits
Total current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Employee benefits
Total non-current liabilities
Total !iabilities
Net assets

Equity
Share capital

Reserves
Retained earnings
Total equity attr¡butable to equity
holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests
Totalequity

37,208 51,128
71 ,762 101,680

19

18

17

16

16
,14

15

1,836

29,084
3,408

226

8,723
38,568

3,002
259

34,554 50,552
8,579

21,540
7,089

7,146
29,070
14,912

25
22
23

1 1,039

3,543
3,237

1 8,1 01

4,363
7,725

1l 819 30,1 89
22
23

12,793
197

9,510 12,990
27.329 43,179
44,433 58,501

9,408
102

55,234
(21,9151

10,716

55,234
(21,944)

24,783
44,035 58,073

428398
44,433 58,501

The subsequent notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Consolidated
ln thousands of AUD Note 2016 ZOIS

Revenue
Other income
Contract disbursements
Personnel expenses
Office expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Gain on bargain purchase

lmpairment loss
Other expenses
Results from operating activities

Finance income
Finance expense
Net finance expense

Loss before income tax

lncome tax benefit
Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Loss for the period

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (AUD)

Diluted earnings per share (AUD)

I
I

11

168,434
257

(35,612)

(120,866)

17,672t
(7,5621

(7,999)

(3,173)

174,195
35

(31,929)

(126,061)

(7,7901

(7,515)

2,221
(4,538)

(2,268l.

14,15
7
15

10

12

13

(14.193) (3,650)

59
(907)

202
(1 ,101)

(848) (899)

(15,041)

1,855

(4,549t

195
(13,186) (4,3541

(13,186) (4,3541

(13,1 56)
(30)

(4,3761

22

1 3,1 86)

(0.14)

354)

(0.05)21
21 (0.14) (0.05)

The subsequent notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2O16

ln tho@ds ot AUD

Shrr c.p¡trl

Attributablê to own.rs of thc Gomprty
Shrr¡-bæ.d Gommon

Gonsolidfcd
B¡l.nc. rt I July ãl1¡l
Total ØmprehenE¡ve ime Íot the pq¡od
Loss for the period

Total comprehensive income for the per¡od
Trt6tct¡ùE with owneß rcæt&d dirccdf in quity
Share options exerc¡s€d
Share-based payment transôctions
Dividends to equ¡ty holders
Total contr¡butions by and d¡stributions to owners

BrlrnocftlJuly20lS
Íottl @mprehercive ¡ncø,me fot ttE pqiod
Loss for the period

Total comprehensive ìncome for the per¡od
Transac.t¡ona with ownèß re@ded d¡rccdy ¡n eq,titl
lssue of ordinary shares in relat¡on to bus¡ness comb¡nat¡ons
Share-based payment transactions
Dividends to equity holders
Total contributions by and distributions to owners

Brllnc. tt 30 JunG 2016

5 t. t08 31,127

(4,37ô)

RctrinGd
armings

paymant
lìtsafvc

(not 20)

2,254

Contrcl
Rcs¡wc
(nots 201

124.2371

Tot l

60,2s6

(4,376)

flon-
Controlling

¡ntG1r3ts

406

22

Tot.l

60.662

(4,354)

(4,376) 14.376) 22 {4,354)

4,126 4,126

35

n.968)

4,126
35

11.9681

35

n.9681

4.126 lt.968l 35 2.1æ 2.19¡

55,234 24,743 2.29 124,23t1 58,073 424 58,501

55,234 24,783

t13.r 56t

2,2æ 124,237t 58,073

t1 3,r s6)

58,50r

l1 3.1 861

428

60)
f13.r56ì (r3, r 56) (30) {13.'t 86}

29 29
(91r )

29
prl)€1r)

lgt 1 29 t882) {882)

The subsequent notes are an integral part of these consolidâted f¡nancial statements.
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2016

ln thousands of AUD

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operations
lnterest paid

lncome tax received / (paid)

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangibles
lnterest received
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Net cash flows used in investing astivities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Dividends paid

Net cash flows from / (used inl financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Note

14

20

19

Gonsolidated
2016 2015

204,277
(203,443)

i 99,535
(190,741)

834
(907)

454

8,794
(1,101)

(558)

28 381 7,135

418
(2,244)

(2211

59

104
(1 ,018)

202
(10,581)

(1,994) (11,2931

(4,363)

(91 1)

11,500
(5,461)

(1,968)

(5,2741 4,071

(6,887)

8,723

(87)

8,810
1,836

The subsequent notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 201 6

Reporting ent¡ty

Mastermyne Group Limited (the 'Company') is a company domiciled in Australia. The address of the Company's
registered office is Level 1, 45 River Street, Mackay Old 4740.The consolidated financial statements of the Company as
at and for the year ended 30 June 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the 'Group'
and individually as 'Group entities').

The Group is a for-profit entity and primarily is involved in providing contracting services to the underground long wall
mining operations and industrial products and services in the coalfields and support¡ng industries of Oueensland and New
South Wales.

2 Basis of preparation
(al Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the
Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial report of the Group complies with lnternational Financial Reporting
Standards (lFRSs) adopted by the lnternational Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 August 2016.

(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian Dollars, which is the Company's functional currency
and the functional currency of each entity in the Group.

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial / Directors' Reports) lnstrument
2016/191 and, in accordance with that lnstrument. all financial information presented in Australian Dollars has been
rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

ln particular, information about sign¡ficant areas of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

o note 'l 5
o note 16
o nole24

- key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections

- recoverability of deferred tax assets

- measurement of share-based payments
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 201 6

3 Significant accounting policies
Accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by the Group entities.

(al Basis of consolidation
(i) BusinessCombinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acqu¡s¡tion method when control ¡s

transferred to the Group (see note 3(aXiii)). The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally
measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested
annually for impairment (see note 3(h)). Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or
equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. lf the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, ¡t is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for
within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3 Significantaccountingpolicies(continued)
(al Basis of consolidation (continuedl
(¡i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to. or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which
control ceases.

(iii) Acquisitions from entities under common control
Business combinations arísing from transfers of interests in entíties that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common control was
established; for this purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilities acquired are
recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group's controlling shareholder's
consolidated financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities are added to the
same components within the Group. Any cash paid for the acquisition is recognised directly in equity.

(iv) Loss of Control
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related Non-Controlling lnterests (NCl) and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is
measured at fair value when control is lost.

(v) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
lntra-group balances. and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(vi) Non-controlling interests
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets at the acquis¡t¡on
date.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions.
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3 Significantaccounting policies(continuedl
(bl Financialinstruments
(i) Non-derivativefinancialinstruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents.
loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair
value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
nonderivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining
control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e. the date that the Group commits itself to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group's obligations specified in the contract expire
or are discharged or cancelled.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Accounting for finance income and expense is discussed in note 3(m)

Other
Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses (see note 3(hxi)).

(ii) Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. lncremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Repurchase of share capital
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which
includes directly attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented in the reserve for own shares
When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an
increase in equity. and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in retained
earnings.
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3 Significantaccountingpolicies(continuedl
(cl Property, plant and equipment
(¡) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accu mu lated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are
recognised within "other income" or "other expenses" in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold,
the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

(¡i) Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder
of that asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line or diminishing value basis over the
estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the¡r useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
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3 Significantaccountingpolicies{continued)
(cl Property, plant and equipment (continuedl
(iii) Depreciation (continued)

The depreciation rates which reflect the estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:

o Plant and equipment
¡ Motor vehicles
r Computer equipment
o Office furniture and equipment
o Leaseholdimprovements

2016
7.50 - 50.00o/o

12.50 - 30.007o

37.50 - 50.00%
25.00 - 66.660/o

7.50 - 15.000/o

2015
7.50 - 50.00%
12.50 - 30.00%
37.50 - 50.00%
25.00 - 66.660/o

7.50 - 15.00o/o

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

(iv) Leasehold improvements
The cost of improvements to. or in. leasehold properties is amortised over the unexpired period of the
lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements to the Group, whichever is shorter.

(dl lntangible assets
(¡) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of the subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. For the
measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3 (axi).

S ubseq uent Measurement
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

(iii) Subsequentexpenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3 Significantaccountingpolicies(continuedl
(d) lntangible assets (continuedl
(iv) Amortisation

Amortisation ís based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit
or loss on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than goodwill,
from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

2016 2015
o Customer related intangibles 3-7 years 3-7 years
o lntellectual Property 8-10 years 8-10 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date, and
adjusted if appropriate.

(e) Leased assets
Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that
asset.

Other leases are classified as operating leases and, as such, the leased assets are not recognised in the
Group's statement of financial position.

(f) lnventories
lnventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based
on the first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories,
production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. ln the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses.

(g) Unbilled Revenue
Unbilled revenue is the estimated amount recoverable from customers in relation to unbilled services
rendered as at balance date.
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3 Significantaccountingpolicies(continued)
(hf lmpairment
(¡) Financial assets fincluding receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and
that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be
estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would
not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy or the disappearance of
an active market for a security. ln addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account against receivables. lnterest on the impaired asset continues to be
recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

(¡i) Non-financialassefs
The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
lf any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is

estimated each year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or Cash-Generating Unit (CGU) ¡s the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the CGU). Subject to an operating segment ceiling
test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are
aggregated so that the level at wh¡ch impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal report¡ng purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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3 Significantaccountingpolicies(continuedl
(hl lmpairment(continued)
(i¡) Non-financialassets (continued)

The Group's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. lf there is an indication that a

corporate asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. lmpairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. lmpairment losses recognised
in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro
rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. ln respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each report¡ng date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(¡l Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss in periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(i¡) Other long-term employee benefits
Ïhe Group's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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3 Significantaccountingpolicies(continued)
(¡l Employee benefits (continued)
(i¡¡) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring. lf the benefits are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

(iv) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably. These liabilities are calculated on an undiscounted basis on remuneration wage and salary rates
that the Group expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as workers
compensation, insurance and payroll tax.

Non-accumulating non-monetary benefits, such as medical care, housing, cars and free or subsidised
goods and services are expensed based on the net marginal cost to the Group as the benefits are
taken by the employees.

(v) Bonus plans

A liability and an expense for employee benefits in the form of profit sharing and bonus plans is
recognised in "sundry creditors and accruals" when there is no realistic alternative but to settle the
liability and at least one of the follow¡ng conditions is met:
¡ There are formal terms in the plan for determining the amount of the benefit;
o The amounts to be paid are determined before the time of completion of the financial report; or
o Past practice gives clear evidence of the amount of the obligation.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

(vi) Share-based payment transactions
The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the
number of awards that do not meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the
vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of
the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences
between expected and actual outcomes.
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3 Significantaccounting policies(continued)
(¡) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discount¡ng the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance expense.

(kl Revenue
(¡) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably,
there is no continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.

(¡¡) Seruices
Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion
of the transaction at the reporting date for fixed price work and as services are provided for work
completed on a schedule of rates. The stage of complet¡on for fixed price work is assessed by
reference to the tasks completed as per the agreed schedule of work provided. No revenue is
recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration.

(l) Lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expense, over the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of ¡nterest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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3 Significantaccountingpolicies(continued)
(m) Finance income and expense

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested
accrues in profit and loss using the effective interest method.

lnterest income is recognised as it

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions
and impairment losses recognised on financial assets. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable
to the acquisition. construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using
the effective interest method.

{nl lncome tax
lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. lncome tax expense is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that ¡t relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entities to the extent that ¡t is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. ln addition, deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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3 Significantaccountingpolicies(continued)
(nl lncome tax (continued)

ln determining the amount of current and deferred, tax the Group takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and ¡nterest may be due. The Group believes that
its accrual for tax liabilities are adequate based on its assessment of several factors, including
interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions
and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may become available
that causes the Group to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of exiting tax liabilities; such
changes to tax liabilities will impact income tax expense in the period that such a determination is
made.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as
the liab¡l¡ty to pay the related dividend is recognised. The Group does not distribute non-cash assets as
dividends to its shareholders.

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax-consolidated group
formed with effect Írom7 May 2010. As a consequence, all members of the tax-consolidated group are
taxed as a single entity. The head entity within the tax-consolidated group is Mastermyne Group
Limited.

(o) Goods and services tax
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST),

except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. ln these
circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) is included as a current asset or
liability in the Group's statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash
flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO
are classified as operating cash flows.
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(p) Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group's other components. All operating segments' operating results are regularly
reviewed by the Board to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly investments (other than
investment property) and related revenue, loans and borrowings and related expenses, corporate
assets (primarily the Group's headquarters) and head office expenses, and income tax assets and
liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.

(ql Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutfue
potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to employees.

(rl New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 July 2015, however, the Group has not applied the following new or amended
standards in preparing these consolidated statements.

AASB 9 Fínancial lnstruments

AASB 9 replaces the existing guidance in AASB 139 Financial lnstruments: Recognition and
Measuremenf . AASB 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
instruments, a new expected cred¡t loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new
general hedge accounting requirements. lt also carries forward the guidance on recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments from AASB 139.

AASB I is effective for annual report¡ng periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early
adoption perm¡tted.

The Group is assessing the potent¡al impact on its consolidated financial statements resulting from the
application of AASB 9.
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(rl New standards and ¡nterpretat¡ons not yet adopted (continuedl

AASB 15 Revenue Írom Contracts wíth Customers

AASB 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. lt
replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including AASB 1 18 Revenue, AASB 1 11 Construction Contracts and AASB
I nterpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.

AASB 15 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted. The
Group is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of AASB 15.

AASB 16 Leases

AASB 16 removes the lease classification test for lessees and requires all the leases (including operating leases) to be brought
onto the balance sheet. The definition of a lease is also amended and is now the new on/off balance sheet test for lessees.

AASB is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, wíth early adoption permitted where
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is adopted at the same time.

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of {trSB 16.

4 Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

The finance team regularly reviews significant. unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. lf third party information, such
as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of AASBs, including the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group's Audit and Risk Management Committee.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values
are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

o Level 7 : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

¡ Level 2'. inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

t Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

lf the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

. Note 7 - business combinations;

o Note 24 - share based payment arrangements; and

. Note 26 - financial instruments;
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5 Financial risk management
Ovewiew
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
r credit risk
. interest rate risk
. liquidity risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, their objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital. Further quant¡tative disclosures are included throughout this
financial report.

Risk Management Framework
The Board, together with management, seeks to identify, monitor and mitigate risk. lnternal controls are monitored on a continuous
basis and, wherever possible, improved. Risk management is identified in the Group's various corporate governance policies and will
continue to be kept under regular review. Review takes place at both the Audit and Risk Management Committee level, with
meetings at least four times a year, and at the Board level.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers.

Trade and other receivables
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer

The majority of the Group's customers are large multinational mining companies with strong payment track records and credit history.
There is no formal credit policy in place, however, each customer is assessed individually for creditworthiness before the Group's
standard payment and delivery terms and conditions (30 days) are offered. The Group operates under signed contracts, purchase
orders and forward purchase agreements which all have agreed payment terms included.

The aged receivables are reviewed on a weekly basis by senior management and overdue amounts followed up with customers for
payment. The Group does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.
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5 Financial risk management (continuedl
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the r¡sk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's approach to
managing liquidity ¡s to ensure, as far as possible. that it will maintain sufficient liquidity levels to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputat¡on.

Typically the Group ensures that ¡t has sufficient cash on demand and undrawn facilities to meet expected operational cash flows for
a per¡od of 70 days, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that
cannot reasonably be predicted. The Group maintains the following lines of credit:

Facility

Multi Option Facility

Overdraft Facility

LC Facility

Corporate Card Facility

Total Multi Option Facility
Revolving Equipment Finance Facility

Amortising Cash Advance Facility

Amortising Cash Advance Facility

Amortising Equipment Finance Facility

Total All Facilities

Facility Limit Amount Drawn
in thousands of AUD

5,000 nil

500 321

500 nil

6,000 321

15,000

10,450

1,297

51

994

10,450

1,297

51

32,798 13,1 13

lnterest rate risk
The Group ensures that interest rates for equipment finance are fixed at the time each individual equipment loan is entered into for
the term of the loan; and the interest rates for commercial bills are fixed for the term of the commercial bills.

Gapital managsment
The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as net operating
income divided by total capital. The Board also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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6 Segment information
Business segments
The group has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group's strategic business units. The strategic business
units offer different services and products and are managed separately because they require different skill bases and marketing
strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the Group's Managing Director reviews internal management reports on a

monthly basis. The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

. Mastermyne - This segment incorporates the provision of project management; labour and equipment hire; underground
conveyor installation, extension and maintenance; underground roadway development; underground ventilation device
installation; bulk materials handling system installation and relocation and underground mine support services.

. Mastertec - Mastertec integrates the services recently acquired through Diversified Mining Services (DMS) and incorporates the
previous capabilities of Mastermyne Services and Engineering divisions. Mastertec provides a wide range of above-ground
contract¡ng services to industry sectors such as Ports, Resources, lndustrial and lnfrastructure. The divisions offerings include
scaffolding and rigging. blast and paint, pipeline services. sustainable capital works, fabrication and machining, training and
engineering and technical services.

There are varying levels of ¡ntegrat¡on between the Mastermyne and Mastertec reportable segments. This integration includes
transfers of human resources and shared overhead resources. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
described in notes 2 and 3.

lnformation regarding the results of each reportable segment is included on the following page. Performance is measured based on
segment profit before income tax as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group's Managing
Director. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in
evaluating results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. lnter-segment pricing is
determined on an arm's length basis.
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6 Segment information (continuedl
Business Segments (continuedl

MGtcrmyna MastartcG Gonsolidrbd

ln thousands of AUD

External revenues
lntersegment revenue

Reportable segment revenue
Depreciation and amortisation
Net finance costs
Goodwill lmpairment
Reportable Segment prof it/(loss)
Segment assets

Capilal expenditure
Segment liabilities

2016

130,585

73

2015

140,863

5,600

2016

37,849

2,564

2015

33,332
1,801

2016

168,434

2,637

2015
't74,195

7,4Q1
130,658 146,463 40,413 35,133 171,071 181,596
(6,086) (6,082) (1,485) (1,463) 17,5711 0,5451
(856) 1827t I t72t (848) (8ss)

(7,999) (4.538) (7,999) (4,538)
z,UO 3,256 (16,335) (5,137) (14,2951 (1,881)

Reconciliations of reportable segment reyenues, profit or loss, assats and liabilities and other material items

in thous€nds of AUD

Revenues

Total revenue for reportable segments

Elimination of inter-segment revenue

Consolidated revenue 168,434 174,195

45,303

1,1 13

122,067l-

60,400
752

(26,368)

2016

171,071
(2,637l,

27,714
1,132

112,1941

2015

181,596
(7,401l-

35,44',1

34t
(14,469)

73,O17

2,245
(34.261)

95,841

1,099
(40,837)

Profit or loss
Total loss for reportable segments

Elimination of inter-segment profits

Unallocated amounts: net corporate expenses

Consolidated loss before income tax

Assets
Total assets for reportable segments

Other assets

Representation of segment liabilities

Unallocated amounts: corporate tax asset

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments

Other liabilities

Representation of segment liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

71,762 101,680

(14,295)

1746l,

(1,881)

(159)

(2,509)

(15,041) (4,549)

73,O17

719
(8,@10)

6,666

95,841

3,O',t4

2,825

134,2611

(1,708)

8,@r0

(40,837)

12,342l,

127,329',' (43,179)

Geographical information
The Group has only operated in Australia during the current and comparative periods. All assets are held within Australia as at 30 June
201 6 and 30 June 201 5.

Major customerc
The Group has two (2015: twol customers that individually represent in excess of 107o of Group revenues. The total revenue from these
customers represents $103.838 thousand (2015: $134,364 thousand) of the Group's total revenues, reported in the Mastermyne and
the Mastertec segments as follows:
. Mastermyne $96,1 81 thousand (201 5: $1 1 7,875 thousand)
o Mastertec $7,657 thousand (201 5: $16,489 thousand)
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7 Businesscombinations
(il Year Ended 30 June 2016
Acquisitions

On 19 FebruarV 2016 the Group purchased the business of Group Engineering. a provider of engineering and design services
to a range of industries, primarily focused on sustaining capital works for the coal mining and heavy industry on the east coast
of Australia.

The acquisition of the Group Engineering business compliments the Mastertec division and allows the Group to be involved at
the
front of projects in the design phase. The addition of the engineering skills will bolster the project management and
project delivery skills of the Mastertec division, ensuring the Group delivers projects of the highest quality.

al Gonsideration transferred
The following table summarises the acquisition-date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred

ln thousands of AUD

Cash

Earnout
229
159

Total consideration transferred 388

bl Acquisition-related costs
The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of $7 thousand.

cl ldent¡f¡able assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date
of acquisition.

ln thousands of AUD

Property, plant and equipment

lntangible assets - lntellectual Property

Deferred tax liabilities

88

290
(e7t

Total identifiable net assets acquired 291

dl Goodwill
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised as follows.

ln thousands of AUD

Total consideration transferred
Fair value of identifiable net assets

388

291

Goodwill

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the skills and technical talent of the Group Engineering work force. and
the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating the company into the Group's existing business.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

97
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7 Businesscombinations(continuedl
(iil Year ended 30 June 2015

Acquisitions

On 23 December 2014 the Group obtained control of Diversified Mining Services Ltd (DMS). a provider of services to a range
of industries, primarily focused on maintenance and mining services in Oueensland and New South Wales, by acquiring 100o/o

of the shares and voting interests in the company.

The acquisition of DMS is in keeping with the Group's strategy of expanding its service offering, and to compliment and
leverage from the position that the Company has in the underground coal sector. The acquisition will also provide some
diversification from coal and will leverage off the synergies of combining with the Mastermyne Group.

DMS operates throughout the Bowen Basin, Gladstone. Mackay and the Hunter Valley for a range of blue chip clients in the
mining, downstream metalliferous processing, prime contracting and mining infrastructure industries. ln addition, DMS is a
specialist in overwater scaffolding. DMS operates through three business units:

. Maintenance - Scaffolding and rigging, protective coatings, poly welding. scheduled maintenance and on-site repairs;
o Engineering - Specialist fabrication, machining and line boring, design and consulting; and
o Mining Operations - Ventilation services, outbye services, gas drainage and secondary support.

{al Gonsideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition-date fair value of each major class of consideration transferred.

in thousands of AUD Note
Cash

Equity lnstruments (1 5,570,022 ordinary shares) 20

10,337

4,126

Total Gonsideration 14,46:t

i. Equity ínstruments issued

The fair value of the ordinary shares issued was based on the listed share price of the Company a|23 December 2014 of
$0.265 per share.

(bl Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of $1 ,272 thousand relating to external legal fees and due diligence costs. These
amounts have been included in other expenses in profit or loss.
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7 Businesscombinations(continuedf

{iil Year ended 30 June 2015 (continuedl

Acquisitions (continuedl
(cl ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.

¡n thousands of AuD Note Total
Property, plant and equipment

lnventories

Trade and other receivables

Bank overdraft

Loans and borrowings

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits

Trade and other payables

Deferred tax liabilities

16

16

14 7,752

1,808

5,166

(2441

(73)

9,258
(s87)

(5,465)

(531)

Total net identifiable assets 16,684

The trade and other receivables comprise gross contractual amounts due of $5,323 thousand. of which $1 57 thousand was
expected to be uncollectible at the date of acquisition.

(dl Gain on bargain purchase

Gain on bargain purchase was recognised as a result of the acquisition as follows. The gain has been directly recognised in the
profit or loss.

in thousands of AUD Total
Total consideration transf erred

Fair value of identifiable net assets

14,463

16,684

Gain on bargain purchase 2,221
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8 Revenue

ln thousands of AUD

Contracting revenue
Sale of goods

Machinery hire

9 Other income

ln thousands of AUD

Administration income

10 Other expenses

ln thousands of AUD

Bad and doubtful debts
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Business acquisition costs
Business development costs
lnsurance

11 Personnel expenses

ln thousands of AUD

Wages and salaries
Other associated personnel expenses
Contributions to defined contribution
superannuation funds

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Gonsolidated
2016 2015

145,438
22,961

35

135,354
33,332

5.509
168,434 174,195

Gonsolidated
2016 2015

257 35
257 35

Gonsolidated
2016 201s

104
o

2,003
7

28
1,025

5

6

1,272

28
957

3.173 2,268

Gonsolidated
2016 2015

106,043
8,186

6,608
29

110,429
8,5M

7,053

35
120,866 126.061
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12 Finance income and expense
Recognised in profit or loss
ln thousands of AUD

Gonsolidated
2016 2015

59 202lnterest income
Finance income

Bank charges
lnterest expenses
Finance lease interest
Finance expense
Net finance expense recognised in profit or loss

13 lncome tax expense

ln thousands of AUD

Gurrent tax expense
Current period

Adjustment for prior periods

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustment for prior period

Total income tax benefit

Numerical reconciliation between tax expense
and pre-tax accounting profit

ln thousands of AUD

Loss excluding ¡ncome tax

lncome tax using the Group's statutory income tax
rate of 30o/o (2015: 30%)

lmpairment of goodwill
Other non-deductible expenses
Non-assessable income
Under provision of previous year

59 202

(74t
(592)

(241l.

(255)

t234t
(6121

(907) (1,101)

(848) (899)

Gonsolidated
2016 2015

(334)
314
(27t

(334) 287

(2,035)

514

(509)

27
(1,5211 (4821
(1,855) (195)

Consolidated
2016 2015

(15,041) (4,549t

(4,512l,

2,399

78

180

(1,365)

1,361

475
(666)

(1,855) (1e5)
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14 PropGrty, plant and rqu¡pm.nt
ln thousands of AUD

Pl.nt.nd
cquipmcm Tot l

Gost or dcamad cos't

Balance at 1 July 2014
Additions
Disposals
Acquired through business combination
Balance at 30 June 2015

Balance at 1 July 2015
Add¡tions
Disposals
Transfers
Bâlance at 30 June 2016

460
20

55.093
869
(59)

totor vchiclcc

1,049

t2211

876

ComputGr
cquipmclrt

Ofüce ft¡rniture
.nd aqu¡pm.nt

lcrschold
¡mproYamcnts

2,O82
69

2,O21

60

115

60.705
1,018

(280)

7 752

62,664
1,933

17,7031

480

1,704
205

(140)

2,'t51
106

(6501

2,1 96

(1.804)

69.1 95
2,244

'10,2971

¿180

(480)

57,374 769 1,607 392 61.'t42

Dcprccifion end ¡mp.¡rm.nt lossrs

Balance at 1 July 2014
Depreciation for the year

Disposals
Balance at 30 June 201 5

29,O52
6,357

714
187

11711

1,547
195

410
28

1,250
556

32,973
7,323

11711
35,409 730 1,742 434 r,uutt 40,125

Balance at 1 July 2015
Depreciation for the year

Disposals
Transfers
Balance at 30 June 201 6

35,409
6,7'10
(5,433)

rKlE

730
176
(381

1,742
182

(630)

1,806
285

11,7751

40,125
7,353

17,8761

438

(438)

37,124 868 1.294 316 39,602

Carry¡ng.moußts

At'l July 2014
At 30 June 201 5

26,O41 335 535 771 27-73250
27.255 974 409 390 ?9,O7042

27,255 974 409 42 390 29,O70At l July 2015
At 30 June 201 6 20,250 901 313 tø :¿1,õ40

The Group leases equipment under a number of f inance lease agreements. At 30 June 2016, the net carry¡ng amount of leased property, plant and equipment
was $4,380 thousand (201 5: $1 0,837 thousand).
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15 lntangible assets

ln thousands of AUD

Goodwill
Cost (gross carrying amount)
Net carrying amount

C u sto m e r re latio n sh i ps
Cost {gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net carrying amount

lntellectual properU
Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisat¡on and impairment
Net carrying amount

Total i ntan g i b I e assets
Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net carrying amount

Reconciliation of carrying amount at beginning and end of the period

ln thousands of AUD

Goodwill
Carrying amount - opening
Acquired in business combination
lmpairment
Carrying amount - closing

Custo m er relation sh ips
Carrying amount - opening
Amortisation
Carrying amount - closing

lntellectual property
Carrying amount - opening
Acquired in business combination
Loss on sale

Amortisation
Carrying amount - closing

Total i ntang i b I e assets
Carrying amount - opening
Acquired in business combination
Loss on sale

lmpairment
Amortisation
Carrying amount - closing

Consolidated
2016 2015

6,429 14,331

6,429 14,331

2,945 2,945
|.2,911t t2,8411

34 104

1,773
|.1,1471

1,522
(1,045)

626 477

11,147
(4,058)

18,798
(3,886)

7,089 14,912

Gonsolideted
2016 2015

14,33't

97
(7,999)

18,869

(4.538)

6,429 14,331

104 173
(70) (69)

34 104

477
290

(2t

(139)

600

t123t
626 477

14,912
387

tzt
(7,999)

(209)

19,642

(4,538)

(192)

Goodwill relates to the acquisition of Mastermyne Underground Pty Ltd

7,089 14,912
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15 Intangible assets (continuedl
Amortisation and impairment charge
The accounting policy for the recognition and measurement of intangible assets is set out in note 3(d)

lmpairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group's operating divisions which represent the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which is not higher than the Group's operating segments as
reported in note 6.

ïhe aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each unit are as follows:

Gonsolidated
Acquired in

Business
Gombin¡tionln thousands of AUD

Mastermyne Mining

Mastertec Products & Services
Total All Segments

I July 2015

7,030

7,301 97

Transfer
(601)

601

lmpairment

(7,999)

2016

6,429
2015

7,030

7,301

14.331 97 (7.999) 6.429 14.331

During the year. the Group acquired further goodwill of $97 thousand as a result of the acquisition of the Group Engineering business as
explained in note 7, Business Combination.

During the year as a result of the ongoing weakness across the mining services sector the group reviewed its core business and made
the decision that workshops were considered non-core activities and therefore exited the Groups workshop activities in Mackay and
Rockhampton. As a result of exiting the workshops and continued weakness in the sector, the carrying amount of the Mastertec CGU
was assessed to be higher than its recoverable amount, and the recognised value of goodwill associated with the Mastertec CGU of
$7,999 thousand was fully impaired (2015: S4,538 thousand). The related impairment loss is included in Profit or Loss.

The recoverable amount of the cashgenerating units as at 30 June 2016 was based on their value in use and was determined by
reference 1o the discounted future cash flows expected to be generated from the continuing use of each CGU, based on past experience,
actual operat¡ng results and the business plans and long-term strategy for the relevant cash generating unit. For the Mastermyne Mining
CGU the value in use was determined to be greater than the relevant carrying amount. The key assumptions for each cash generating
unit were as follows:

FY 2016 assumptions FY 2015 assumptions
Annual Annual
revenue revenue

growth rate growth rate

lfYzOtT- Terminal Pre-tax (FY2016- Terminal Pre-tax
FY202ll growth rate discount rate FY2020) growth rate discount rate

Mastermyne Mining 6.8% 2.5Vo 16.20/o 4.3Vo 2.5o/o 16.07o

Mastertec Products and Services 6.0% 2.5vo 17.7Vo 5.oVo 2.5vo 16.4vo

The discount rate was calculated based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital, an industry average beta, risk-free rate based on
Austral¡an government 1O-year treasury bonds with a minimum yield used of 4.5Vo. a market risk premium of 67o and a calculated cost of
debt based on the Group's current debt and interest rates payable on this debt.
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16 Tax assets and liabilities
Gurrent tax asssts and liabilities
The current tax asset for the Group of $226 thousand (201 5: $259 thousand) represents the amount of income taxes refundable, in
respect of cunent and prior periods.

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following

Consolidated
ln thousands of AUD

Employee benefits
Property, plant and equipment
Receivables
lntangible assets
Accruals
Capital raising and business acqu¡s¡tion
costs
Unbilled revenue
Provisions
Tax loss carry-forwards
Tax assets/{liabilities)
Set off of tax

Asscts
2016

1,O02

163

75

10,529

2015

1,720

26

47

456

173

7 _776

Liabillties
2016 2015

(1,656) 12,054l.

(97) (311

ß; ß1r

11,4021 (933)

'n 
t:'

Net
2016

1,O02

(1,656)

(97)

163

44

|'1,402l.

(4t

10,529

2015

1,720

12,o28l

47

(31)

456

142

(9331

(3)

7,776

8,579 7,146

Nettaxassets/(liabilities) 8,579 7,146 - - 8,579 7,146

At 30 June 2016 the Group has revenue losses totalling $34,81 I thousand (201 5: $25,920) which are available to be offset against f uture
taxable income.

Movement in temporary differences during the year

11,769
(3,190)

10,198
(3.052)

(3,190)

3,190

(3,052)

3,052

Gonsolidated
ln thousands of AUD

Employee benefits
Property, plant and equipment
Receivables
lntangible assets
Accruals
Capital raising and business acquisition costs
Unbilled revenue
Provisions
Research and development tax offset
Tax loss carry-forwards

Gonsolidated

ln thousands of AUD

Employee benefits
Property, plant and equipment
Receivables
lntangible assets
Accruals
Capital raising and business acquisition costs
Unbilled revenue
Provisions
Tax loss carry-forwards

Balanca
I July 2011

1626

{1.813)

6.21

345
(26)

(2,140l,

(3)

Rccogniscd in
prolit or loss

1434t

216
101

21

(210)

(52)

1,207
(19)

1234t

n14l

Acquirrd ¡n

busina6s
combinrtions

528
(431)

(54)

321
220

8¡l¡ncc
30 Junc 2015

1720
(2,0281

47
(31)

456
142

(933)

(3119

234
7.890 7,776

{2.063) 482 8,727 7.146

B.l.ncc
1 July 2015

Rccogniscd in
profit or loss

Acquirrd ¡n

bu3¡nass
comb¡n.t¡ons

(88)

B¡l¡ncc
30 Junc ã116

1,720

12,028t
47
(31)

456
142

(s33)

(3)

7,776

(718)

372

l47l
22

(293)

(98)

(469)

(1)

2,753

1,002
(1,6561

(97)

163

44

11,4O2l
(4)

10,529
7,146 1,521 (88) 8,579
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17 lnventories

ln thousands of AUD

Raw materials
Finished goods

Trade receivables
Prepayments
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables

Bank balances

Cash on hand

Cash and cash equiwlents in the slatement of cash flows

Gonsolid¡ted
2016 2015

1,072
2,336

978
2,O24

3,408 3,002

During the year ended 30 June 2O16, raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods and work in progress recognised as cost
of sales amounted to $16,245 thousand (2015: $8,019 thousand).

18 Trade and other rsceivables

ln thousands of AUD
Gonsolidatcd

2016 2015

21,O18

2,516
5,413

137

30.691

1,199
6,081

597
29,084 38,568

The Group's exposure to cred¡t risks and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are disclosed in note 26.

19 Gash and cash equivalents

In thousands of AUD
Consolidatcd

2016 2015

1,835

1

8,718
5

1,836 8,723

Ïhe Group's exposure to interest rate risk and a sensit¡vity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are disclosed ¡n note 26.
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20 Gepital and rcserves

The share capital of Mastermyne Group Limited is as follows:

Ordin.ry dE sh¡r.3
2016 2015

91,087,536 75,517,514
- 15,570,022

91,087,536 91,087,536

Ordinary sharcs
The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect oi its issued shares. All issued shares are fully paid.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company.

The Group has also issued performance r¡ghts (see note 241.

Rcscrvcc
Shrrc-b¡scd prym.nts r.so¡r.
Ïhe share-based payments reserve represents the grant date fair value of equity instruments granted to senior managers or key management personnel
of the Company (see note 241.

Gommon control rsorYo
As a result of combinations of entities under common control, an equity account was created called the common control reserve. The balance of this
account represents the excess of the fair value of Mastermyne Group Limited securities as at 7 May 2010 over the ¡nitial carrying value of Mastermyne
Pty Ltd as at the date of Mastermyne Group Limited becoming the new parent entity of the Group.

On issue at 1 July
Shares issued in relation to business combination
On issue at 30 June - fully paid
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20 Gapital and reserves lcontinuedl

Dividends
Dividends recognised in the current year by the Group are:

Dolhrc pcr sherc

2016
2015 Ordinary - Ordinary Shares Final Dividend
Total amount

2015
2014 Ordinary - Ordinary Shares Final Dividend
20'15 Ordinary - Ordinary Shares lnterim Dividend
Total amount

Franked dividends declared or paid during the year were franked at the tax rate of 30 per cent.

There were no dividends declared after the balance sheet date.

Dividend franking account

ln thousnds of AUD

Tot lrmount
( ln thouænds ol AUD)

91 1

1,968

91 1 Franked 15fiOn015

91 1

1,057

Fr¡nlcd /
u¡rfrankcd

D.t of
prymcnt

$

$

0.010

0.014

0.010

Gompany
2016 2015

Franked

Franked

1€i/10n014

2ß4n015

30% franking credits available to shareholders of Mastermyne Group Limited for subsequent financial years

14,669 15,396

The balance of the dividend franking account represents the total of the ¡ndividual franking accounts w¡thin the companies comprising the consol¡dated
entity.

The above available amounts are based on the balance of the dividend franking account at year€nd adjusted for:
(i) franking credits/debits that will arise from the payment of the current tax liabilities or refund of current tax assets;
(i¡) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a l¡ab¡lity at the year-end;
(iii) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables by the Group at the year-end; and
(iv) franking credits that the entity may be prevented from distr¡buting in subsequent years.

The abil¡ty to utilise the franking credits is dependent upon there being available prof¡ts to declare dividends.

The impact on the dividend franking account of dividends proposed after balance date but not recognised as a liability is to reduce it by $0 thousand
(201 5: $390 thousand).
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21 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share at 30 June 201 6 was based on the loss attr¡butable to ordinary shareholders of $1 3,1 56 thousand (201 S:
$4,376 thousand) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 91,088 thousand (201 5: 83,580 thousand), calculated as follows:

Prot¡t attributable to ordinary shareholders

ln thoMmß of AUD

Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders

Weighted avorrge numbcr ol ordinary shares

In thousands of shares

lssued ordinary shares at 1 July
Effect of shares issued in relation to business combination
We¡ghted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June

Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders

Weighted average number of ordintry shares (dilutsdl

ln thousands of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 30 June

Díluted earnings per share
The calculation oi diluted earnings per share at 30 June 201 6 was based on the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of $1 3,1 56 thousand (201 b:
$4,376 thousand) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstand¡ng of g1,088 thousand (201 5: 83,580 thousand), calculated as follows:

Prof¡t attdbutable to ordinary shareholders ldilutedl

In thousands of AUD
Gonsolidrtcd

2016 2015

Gonsolidrbd
2016 2015

(13,156) (4,376)

Gonsolidrtcd
2016 2015

91,088 75,518
- 8,062

91.088 83,580

(1 3.1 56) (4,376)

Gonsol¡d.t d
2016 2015

91,088 83,580
91,088 83,580
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22 Lo¡ns and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and borrowings which are measured at amortised cost.
For more information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risk, see note 26.

ln thoustds of AUD Gonsolidrt¡d
2016 2015

Current l¡abil¡t¡es
Finance lease liabilities (secured)

Cash advance facility (secured)
1,046

3,543 4,363

2.497
2,731
1,632

Non-curÍent liabilities
Finance lease liabilities (securedl

Contingent consideration (unsecured)

Cash advance facility (securedl

ln thousncts of AUD

Less than one year

Between one and five years

More than five years

158
9,250

1,046

'11.747

9.408 12,793

Security
Finance lease

Finance lease facilities are drawn with the Westpac Banking Corporation and Vendor Finance Pty Ltd, and are secured by a charge over the asset to
which the facility relates to and a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Group.

Westpac cash advance facility
The Westpac cash advance fac¡lity is drawn with the Westpac Banking Corporation for the purpose of the DMS acquisition and equipment funding and
is secured by a fixed and floating charge over all assets and uncalled capital of the Group.

Finance lease liabilities
Finance lease l¡ab¡lities of the Group are payable as follows:

Consolidrt d

Futun minimum
lcrsc prymants

20f6

1,082

lnt rrst
2016

Prcscnt v¡luc of
m¡n¡mum lc|sc

p.ymcnts
2016

1,046

Futu¡c minimum lc¡cc
prym.nts

2015

Prrfant Yalua of
minimum lc¡sc

p¡Vm.nts
2015

2,731
1,046

lntcrcat
2015

(36) 2,891
1,O82

(1 60)
(36)

1,082 (36) 1,046 3,973 (1961 3;r77

23 Employee benefits

ln thousdtcts of AUD

Current
Wages payable

Liability for annual leave
Liability for vesting sick leave
L¡ability for long service leave

Non-currênt
Liab¡lity for long service leave

Consol¡d.t d
2016 2015

1,955
1,121

161

2,188
3,212
1,937

388
3.237 7,725

102 197
102 197
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2¡l Share-based payment arr¡ngemonts
Dcscription of the share-based payment arÞngements
At 30 June 2016, the Group has the following share-based payment arrangements:

Performancs Ri ghts programme (equity settlcdl
An employee performance rights plan was adopted by the Board on 1 5 September 2015 and the plan was act¡vated by resolution of the Board as of 16
November 2015. This plan entitles personnel to purchase shares in the Company provided performance conditions are met. ln accordance with the plan,
employees holding vested options are ent¡tled to purchase shares in the Company at a set exercise price based on volume weighted average price in
the two months preced¡ng the offer.

The terms and conditions of the performance rights programme are as follows; all options are to be settled by physical delivery of shares.

Number of
Instruments Contr¡ctual

Life of RightsGrant date tnd employees ont¡tlêd Vesting Gonditions

Perfromance rights granted to KMP including
CEO/Managing Director on 21 January 201 6 (FY 2016 397,949 Vesting Conditions 1 , 2, 3 and 4a 2.b years
Tranche A)

Perfromance rights granted to KMP including
CEO/Managing Director on 21 January 2016 (FY 2016 397,949 Vesting Conditions 1 , 2, 3 and 4b 2.b years
Tranche B)

Vesting of the rights will be subiect to achievement of the vesting conditions set out below and the eligible participant being employed at the vesting
date:

o Vesting Condilion 1: The main Vesting Condition is that the eligible participant must be employed within the Group on the Test Date. lf employment is
ceased with the Group prior to the Test Date, the performance rights will lapse unless the Board at its absolute discretion determines otherwise.

. Vesting Condit¡on 2: Vesting is also conditional on the continuation of good conduct and the execution of duties ¡n the best interests of Mastermyne. lf
it is deemed the elig¡ble participant has acted fraudulently or dishonestly, or is in breach of obligations to Mastermyne, the Board at its discretion may
determine that some or all of the performance rights will lapse.

. Vesting Condition 3: There is an overriding Vesting Condition, requiring a minimum 8% total shareholder return (TSR) during the TSR measurement
period {i.e. from the Time of Grant to the Test Date).

. Vesling Condition 4: lf Vesting Condition 3 is achieved there are two further Vest¡ng Condit¡ons that will each be applied independently to SOyo of the
performance rights. Both of these Vest¡ng Conditions depend on Mastermyne's TSR percentile rank during the TSR measurement period:

a. Tranche A: 50% of the performance rights will be conditional on the company's TSR rank relative to companies in the ASX All Ordinaries
Accumulation index;

b. Tranche B: 507o of performance rights will be conditional on the company's TSR rank relative to the ASX 200 Resources Accumulation
index.

For each tranche, the percentage of performance rights which will vest will be as specified ¡n the table below:

TSR Rank during TSR
measurement period

Percentage of Tranche A or Tranche
B performance rights vesting

Below 50th percent¡le of the ASX
Peer Group or the Resources Peer
Group

07o

50th percentile to 75th percent¡le of
the ASX Peer Group or the
Resources Peer Group

507o plus 2lo Ío¡ each percentile
above 50th percentile

Above 75th percentile of the ASX
Peer Group or the Resources Peer
Group

1 0070

The fair value of the rights granted through the employee performance rights programme was measured based on the Monte Carlo simulation.
Expected volatility is estimated by considering historic average share price volatility based on Mastermyne and its peers.
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2¡l Share-based payment anangcmcnts (continuedl

Equity-settled share-bascd payment plans
The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date of the equity-settled share-based payment plans were as follows:

Íry mrnegcmrnt p.rconnal t S.nior m.n.gamcnt FYll016 Rights

Fa¡t value of s,lÆ,rc optiüs and assumptions

Fair value at grant date Tranche A
Fair value at grant date Tranche B

Share price

Exercise price

Expected volatil¡ty (weighted average volatilM
Option life (expected weighted average life)

Expected dividends

Risk-free ¡nterest rate (based on government bonds)

$
$
$
$

FY2016

0.1116
0.1 140

o.21

nil

7't.1%

2.5 years

9.50%

2.O9%
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25 Trade and other payables

ln thousands ol AUD

Trade payables

Sundry creditors and accruals

Consolid¡ted
2016 2015

3,818 6,340
7,221 11,761

1 1,039 18,101

Ïhe Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed ¡n note 26.

26 Financial anstruments
Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk
Ïhe carrying amount of the Group's financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk at the report¡ng date was:

ln thousands of AUD

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

In thousands of AUD

Not Past Due

Past due G30 days
Past due 31-60 days

Past due 61-90 days

Greater than 90 days

Note

18

19

Gonsolidated

2016 2015

29,084 38,568
1,836 8,723

30,920 47,291

The Group has three (2015: two) significant customers each representing more than 10% of the carrying amount of trade
receivablesat30June20l6. Thetotal of thereceivablesfromthesecustomersis$1 5,190thousand(201 5:$12,005
thousand).

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

ln the current and comparative periods, the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held with a AA-Rated Australian bank.

lmpairment losses
The aging of the Group's trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:

Gonsolidated

2016 2015

14,049 21,694
6,064 7,881
603 208
85 517

217 499
21,018 30,799

lmpairment losses of $0 thousand were recognised at 30 June 2016 (2015: $108 thousand).

59



Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Fo¡ the year ended 30 June 2016

26 Financial ¡nstruments (continued)
lmpairment losses (continuedl

ln thousands of AUD

Balance at 1 July
lmpairment loss recognised
lmpairment allowance utilised
Balance at 30 June

ln thousands of AUD

Four or more years trading history with the Group
Less than four years trading history with the Group

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year ended 30 June
2016 was as follows:

Gonsolidated

2016 2015

(108) (1,033)

(16) (5)

124 930
(108)

lmpairment allowance utilised during the year relates to a number of customers that were placed into receivership during the year
ended 30 June 20'16. At the t¡me the Group raised an allowance for the full amount of the receivable, and it is unlikely that that the
amount will become recoverable.

Credit risk in trade receivables is managed in the following ways: payment terms being 30 days and credit evaluations performed on all
new customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group does not require collateral in respect of trade receivables. An analysis
of the credit quality of trade receivables not impaired is as follows:

2016 2015

16,627 13,253
4,391 17,438

21,018 30,691

Amounts in the above table include all trade receivables at the reporting date that were not impaired

Liquidity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities. including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of
netting agreements:

Gonsolidated
30 June 2016
ln thousands of AUD Note Carrying

rmoünt
Contractual
cash llows

6 mths or 6-12 mths
less

1-2 ycars 2-5 ye¡rs More than 5
yêars

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Cash advance facility
Trade and other payables

22
22
25

1,046

11,747

1 1.039

(1,082)

(12.8411

(1 1,039)

(567)

(2,1671

(1 1,039)

(515)

(825) 11,612) t8,237t

23,832 124,962t Í3.773l. (1,340) (1,612) (8,237t

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier or at significantly different
amounts.
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26 Financial ¡nstruments (continuedl
Liquidity risk (continuedl

Gonsolidated
3O June 2015

ln thousands of AUD Note Garrying 6mthsor 6-12mths 1-2years 2-Syerrs itoroth¡n5
less years!mount

Gontractual
cash llows

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Cash advance Facility

Trade and other payables

22
22
25

3,777
13,379
18.101

(3,973)

(14,961)

(18.101)

(1,815)

(1,092)

(1,076)

11,o72l

(1,082)

(2,095) 110.702l-
(18.101

35..257 .37.035) {2't.OO8ì 148) 13,1771 110.702t

lnterest rate risk

Profile
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Gonsolidatod

Garrying amount
lnthousandsotAUD 2016 2015

Fixed rate ¡nstrumsnts
Financial liabilities & lnsurance premium
funding

(1.046) 13,7771

Variable rate ¡nstruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

(1,046) 13,7771

1,836

(11,7471

8,723
(13,379)

(9,91 1) (4,656)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the report¡ng date would not affest profit or loss.
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26 Financial ¡nstrum€nts (continuedl

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate ¡nstruments
As at 30 June 2016, the effect on profit as a result of changes in the interest rate, with all other variables
remaining constant, would be as follows:

Effect ln thousands of AUD Gonsolidated

2016 2015
Ghange in profit

lncrease in interest rate by 1 7o

Decrease in interest raleby2Vo
l47l
93

The above interest rate sensit¡vity analysis has been performed on the assumption that all other variables remain
unchanged.

A change in interest rate on the above variable rate instruments would have had no impact on equity.

No sensitivity analysis has been performed on foreign exchange risk, as the Group is not directly exposed to
foreign currency fluctuations.

Fair values
Fair values vercus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of
financial position. are as follows:

(99)

198

30 Junc 2016

Carrying Fair
amount valus

30 June 2015

Garrying Fair value
amount

Gonsolidated
In thousands of AUD

Assets Garried at Amortised Cost
ïrade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities Carried at Amort¡sêd Cost
Finance lease liabilities
Cash advance facility
Trade and other payables

29,084

1,836

29,084

1,836

38,568

8,723

38,568

8,723

30,920 30,920 47,291 47,291

(1,046)

(11,7471

(1 1.039)

(1,064)

(11,7471.

(1 1,039)

13,7771

(13,379)

(18,101)

(3,892)

(13,379)

(18,101)

123,832]. (23,850) (35,257) 135,3721,

The basis for determining fair values is disclosed in note 4.

¡nterest rates used for døtermining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows are based on current market rates for
similar lease agreements and were as follows:

2016 2015

Finance Lease Liabilities 3.91 % 4.O9Vo

Measuremefi of fair values
(¡) Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

Financial ¡nstruments not measured at fair value:
The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant
unobservable inputs used.

Type Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
Finance Lease Liabilities Discounted cash flows. Not Applicable
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27 Operating leases
Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

ln thousands of AUD

Less than one year
Between one and five years

ln thousands of AUD

C¡sh flows from operating activities
Loss for the period

Adiustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
lmpairment loss

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Share based payments
Bargain on acquisition
Net finance expense
lncome tax benefit
Operating profit before changes in working capital and provisions

Change in trade and other receivablesr
Change in inventories
Change in trade and other payables'
Change in provisions and employee benefits*

lnterest paid

lncome taxes paid

Nst cash lrom operating activities
*After adjusting for changes due to business combinations

Consolidated
2016 Al15

1,632 2,220
889 1,415

2,521 3,6:¡5

The Group leases a number of residential premises and office facilities under operating leases. The residential premise leases typically run
for a period of 1 year. The office premise leases typically run for a period of between 1 and 5 years, with an opt¡on to renew the lease after
that date in some cases.

The Group leases a number of motor vehicles under operat¡ng leases. The leases typically run for a period of 2-4years.

The amount recognised in relation to operating lease payments for the year ended 30 June 2016 totalled $3,392 thousand (201 5: $3,046
thousand) for the Group.

28 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
Gonsolidated

2016 2015Note

14

15
15

10

11

7
12

13

7,353
209

7,999
2,O03

29

848
(1,855)

7,323
192

4,538

6
35

(2,221t

899
(195)

(13,186) @,3541

3,400

9,484
(406)

(7,061)

(4,583)

6,223

4,515
1,549

ß,629)
136

834
(907)

454

8,794
(1,101)

(558)

381 7,135
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29 Related parties
Key management personnel compensation
The key management personnel compensation included in 'personnel expenses' (see note 11)are as follows:

ln whole AUD

Short-term employee benef its
Post-employment benef its
Termination benefits
Share-based payments

Gonsolidated
2016 2015

1,601,382
135,887

1,758,078
157,732
28,801

35,30729,187
1,766,456 1,979,918

lndividual direstorc and executives compensation disclosures
lnformation regarding individual directors and executives compensation and some eguity instruments disclosures, as required by
Corporations Regulations 2M.3.03, is provided in the remuneration report sect¡on of the directors' report.
Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the Group since the end of the previous
f inancial year and there were no material contracts involving directors' interests existing at year-end.

Lo.ns to key management personnel
No loans were made, guaranteed or secured by the Company to key management personnel for the year.

Key management personnel and director transact¡ons
A number of key management persons, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or
significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entit¡es.

A number of these entities transacted with the Group in the reporting period. The terms and conditions of the transactions with key
management persons and their related parties were no more favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be
available, on similar transactions to non-key management persons and their related entities on an arm's length basis.

The aggregate value of transactions and outstanding balances relating to key management personnel and entities over which they have
control or significant influence were as follows:

T?ens¡ct¡on Yrlue Balance outstanding
as at 30 June

2016 2015

year ended 30 June

2015Transaction
Andrew Watts - Watty Pty Ltd

Andrew Watts - Watty Ry Ltd

Andrew Watts - Watty Fty Ltd

Note
(i)

(ii)

(i¡i)

2016

255,536
276.096

56.727

255,536
2t6,096

93,600
588.359 625.232

(i) The Group rents the premises at 45 River Street, Mackay which is owned by Andrew Watts through his company Watty Pty Ltd.
Amounts paid for rent are at arm's length and are due and payable under normal payment terms.

(ii) The Group is paying for leasehold improvements made by Watty Pty Ltd to the premises at 45 River Street, Mackay which is
owned by Andrew Watts through his company, Watty Pty Ltd.

(iii) The Group rents a duplex at 56 Grosvenor Drive, Moranbah which is owned by Non - executive Director, Andrew Watts through
his company Watty Pty Ltd. Amounts paid for rent are at arm's length and are due and payable under normal payment terms. This
rental agreement was ceased as at 1 2 March 2016.

From time to time key management personnel and directors of the Group, or their related entities, may purchase goods or services from
the Group. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other Group employees or customers and are
trivial or domestic in nature.
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30 Group cntitics
Par.nt rnd ultim¡tc controlling pafi
PrraEt.nt¡ty
Mastermyne Group Limited

Signifi cant subsidiarics

Mastermyne Pty Ltd
Mastermyne Engineering Pty ltd
Mastermyne Underground Pty Ltd
Mastermyne Services Pty Lid
Mastermyne Underground NNSW fty Ltd
Myne Start fty Ltd
MyneS¡ght Pty Ltd
National Labour Solutions Pty Ltd
Mastertec lndustrial and Maintenance Pty Ltd
Anderson Mine Services fty Ltd
Ausscaffold Pty Ltd
Diversified Mining Services Ltd
East Coast Engineering (OLD) Pty Ltd
Falcon Min¡ng Pty Ltd
Machinetek Engineering Pty Ltd
Velamont Pty Ltd
Anderson lndustries 14u51) Pty Ltd

Country of ¡ncorpolltion
Australia

Own.]sh¡p irtorgst
at16 atrs
%f.

Austral¡a
Austral¡a
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Austral¡a
Austral¡a
Australia
Austral¡a
Australia
Australia
Austral¡a
Austral¡a

100

100

100

100

100

100

66.67

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

66.67

100

100

r00
100

100

100

100

100

100

100

31 DccdofCrossGurruntrc

Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998. the wholly-owned subsidianes listed below are relieved from the Corporations Act
2001 requiements for preparat¡on, audit and lodgement of financial reports and directors' report.

It ¡s a cond¡t¡on of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of Cross Guarantee. The effect oT the Deed is that the
Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in the event of winding up oi any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of lhe
Corporations Act 20ü . n a w¡nding up occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Company will only be liable in the event that after six months any cred¡tor
has not been paid in full. The subsidiaries have also given stmilar guarantees ¡n the event that the Company is wound up. The deed took effect on 23 June
201 0

The subsidiaries subject to the deed are:
o Mastermyne Pty Ltd
. Mastermyne Engineering fty Ltd
. Mastermyne Underground Pty Ltd
. Mastermyne Services Pty Ltd
o Mastermyne Underground NNSW Pty Ltd
. Myne Start Pty Ltd
o National Labour Solut¡ons Pty Ltd
. Mastertec lndustrial and Ma¡ntenance Pty Ltd
. Anderson Mine Services Pty Ltd
. Ausscaffold Pty Ltd
. Diversified Min¡ng Services Ltd
. East Coast Engineering (OLD) Pty Ltd
o Falcon Mining Pty Ltd
. Machinetek Engineering Pty Ltd
. Velamont Pty Ltd

A consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of financial position, comprisrng the Company and
controlled ent¡ties wh¡ch are a party to the Deed, after eliminat¡ng all transact¡ons between part¡es to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 30 June 201 6 ¡s set out
as follows.
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3t Dccd of Cross Gu¡r¡rtcc lcontinucdl
Statcmcnt of financia! position
As rt 30 Juno 2016

ln thouænds ot AUD

AssGts

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

lnventories

Current tax assets
Tot l cürrrnt rsscts
lnvestments in subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets
Totrl non-q¡rrrnt rsrcûs
Total asscts

Liabilitics
Trade and other payables

Loans and borrowings
Employee benefits
Tota¡ currrnt l¡ab¡!¡t¡Gs

Loans and borrowings
Employee benefits
Tot l non-cu?ÌGntli¡bilitics
Tot¡l li¡bilitics
Nct rsscrts
Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Retained earnings
Total Equity

Statcmcnt of prof¡t or loss ¡nd othù comprchcnsivc incomc

ln thouænds ol AUD

Revenue

Other income

Contract disbursements
Personnel expenses

Office expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Gain on bargain purchase

lmpairment loss

Other expenses
Rccults from opsrt¡ng rctiv¡t¡rs

Finance income

Finance expense
Nst f¡nrn6 cxpcnsG

Profit / (loss) bcforc incomc t¡x
lncome tax (expense) / benefit

Profit / (lossl for the period

Other comprehensrve income for the period, net of ¡ncome tax
Total comprêhansivc incomc for thc pcriod

20r6 2015

8,320

37.735
3,OO2

295

1,635

28,444
3.408

190

33,677 49,352
723

8,589
21,474

6,315

723
7,146

28,997

14.138

37,101 51,004
70,778 100,356

1 1,199

3,543
3,1 00

17,765
4,363
7,616

17,U2 29,744

9,408
102

12.793
197

9,510 12,990
27,352 42.734
43,426 57,622

55,234
(21,915)

1 0,1 07

55,234
121,944't

24,332
43,426 57,622

2016 2015

165,386 170,192
121 35

(3s.s07) (31 .3151
(118,230) 1123,107l,

(7,386) p,548)
(7,540) 17,4871

- 2,221
(7,999) (4.538)

t3,1711 12,1971

|'14,3261 13,744].

57 200
(9051 (1,099)
(848) {899}

115.1741

1,897

(4,Aß)

113,2771 14,419].

224

(13,2771 (4.419)
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For ürr yor cnd.d 30 Jun. 2016

g, Subc.qu.nt æailt!

There has not arisen in the intenlal between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to affect sign¡ficantly the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of
affairs of the Group in future linancial years.

38
tn whole AIJD

Audit¡¡wic¡r
Aud¡tors of the Company

KPMG Australia:
Audit and review of financial reports

Con¡olidr!¡d
201a 2015

120,000 180,000
120,000 1æ,000

Olhcr¡¡wir¡c
Auditors of the Company

KPMGAUsTaIb
TÐ€tion compliance services
Data analytic services

103.000 86.000

91,000
1 2,000

7s,000
1 1,000
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entit¡es

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2016

34 Parent Entity Disclosures

As at and throughout the financial year ending 30 June 2016 the parent company of the group was Mastermyne Group Limited.

Gompeny
ln thousands of AUD
Results of tho parent ent¡ty

Loss for the period
Total comprehensive income for the period

Financial pos¡tion of paront ontity at
year end

Current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Total liabiliries

Total equity of tho parent ent¡ty
Share Capital
Sharebased payments reserve
Retained earnings
Total Equity

2016 2015

(2.835)
(2.8351

54.692

2,322 55,234
2,293

(2.835)

2,322 54,692

Parent Entity Cont¡ngenc¡6

There were no parent entity cont¡ngencies required for the year ending 30 June 2016 (201 5: Nill

Parent Ent¡ty Cap¡ta! Comm¡tmonts

There were no parent entity capital commitments at 30 June 2016 (2015: Nill.

Parent Entity Gapital Guarantees

The parent entity has entered ¡nto a Deed of Cross guarantee with the effect that the Company guarantees debts ¡n respect of its subsidiaries.

Further details of the Deed of Cross Guarantee and the subsidiaries subject to the deed, are disclosed in note 31.
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Mastermyne Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' declaration

1 ln the opinion of the d¡rectors of Mastermyne Group Limited (the "Company"):

(a) the consolidated financial statements and notes that are set out on pages 20 to 68 and the Remuneration
report in section 5 of the Directors' report, set out on pages 2to 18, are in accordance with lhe Corporations
Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its performance for
the financial year ended on that date; and

(i¡) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

2 There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the group entities identified in Note 31 will be able
to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of Cross
Guarantee between the Company and those group entities pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418.

3 The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 2954 of the Corporations Act 2001 from the
chief executive officer and chief financial off icer for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

4 The directors draw attention to note 2(al to the consolidated financial statements, which includes a statement of
compliance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards.

n accordance with a resolution of directors

t
td

Dated at Brisbane this 16th day of August 2016
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Mastermyne Group Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Mastermyne Group Limited (the
company), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016,
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended on
that date, notes I to 34 comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information and the directors' declaration of the Group comprising the company and
the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Díre ctors' re spons ib iltty.fo, the financ ial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives
a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations
Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or
error. [n note 2, the directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard
AASB 101 Presentatíon of Financial Statements,thatthe financial statements of the Group
comply with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's respons ibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofaccounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
report.

\Me performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting
Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understanding of the Group's
financial position and of its performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Independence

ln conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 200l,including:

(Ð giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial pcisition as

at 30 June 2016 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(iÐ complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001.

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as

disclosed in note 2.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in section 5 of the Directors' Report fo¡ the
year ended 30 June 2016.. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with Section 3004 of the Corporations
Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our
audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards.

Audítor's opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Mastermyne Group Limited for the year ended
30 June 2016, complies with Section 3004 of the Corporatíons Act 2001.

KPMG

M L Gray
Partner

Brisbane
16 August 2016

7t


	3854_001
	3854_007
	3854_012
	3854_018
	3854_025
	3854_031
	3854_036
	3854_041
	3854_048
	3854_055
	3854_063
	3854_070

